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Corporate Profile
LT A#H

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Lai Guanglin (Chairman)
Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lai Fulin

Non-executive Director

Mr. U Kean Seng

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson
Mr. Chen Wei Wen
Ms. Yang Li

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson (Chairman)
Mr. U Kean Seng
Mr. Chen Wei Wen

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Ms. Yang Li (Chairman)
Mr. Lai Guanglin
Mr. Chen Wei Wen

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Lai Guanglin (Chairman)
Mr. Chen Wei Wen
Ms. Yang Li

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Tsang Wai Yip, Patrick

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng
Mr. Tsang Wai Yip, Patrick

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22/F, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong
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PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Appleby Management (Bermuda) Ltd.
Canon’s Court

22 Victoria Street

Hamiton HM 12, Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Wing Lung Bank Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Canon’s Court
22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 12
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS

12th Floor, Phase |
Austin Tower

22-26A Austin Avenue
Tsim Sha Tsui
Kowloon, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2728 7237
Fax: (852) 2387 2999
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AFHRH

OTHER PLACES OF BUSINESS
HONG KONG AND MACAU

Retail shops

G/F., 618 Shanghai Street, Mongkok, Kowloon,

Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2395 0181
Fax: (852) 2787 3421

G/F., No. 30 Hop Yick Road, Yuen Long,
New Territories, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2473 3660

Fax: (852) 2442 2766

Shop A, G/F., No. 7-11 Tai Wong Street East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2866 6001
Fax: (852) 2866 6339

Rua Da Ribeira Do Patane No. 13, Macau
Tel: (853) 2855 3693
Fax: (853) 2895 1020

Warehouses

Sections M and N of Lot 3719 in DD104,
Yuen Long, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2471 9048

Fax: (852) 2482 1298

Lot 372383 in DD104, Yuen Long,
New Territories, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2471 9048

Fax: (852) 2482 1298

MAINLAND CHINA

Bun Kee Building Material (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd

No. 3 Langwei Road, Xiaolong Village,
Shiji Town, Panyu District, Guangzhou, PRC
Tel: 86-20-6194 9418
86-20-6194 9428
Fax: 86-20-8455 4077

WEBSITE

http://www.chinapipegroup.com
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| have pleasure in presenting to the shareholders
the annual report of China Pipe Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 31st December 2011.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31st December 2011, the Group
recorded revenue from continuing operation of
approximately HK$438.4 million (2010: HK$385.1
million), representing an increase of 13.8% as
compared with the year ended 31st December
2010. The profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company was approximately HK$13.3 million for the
year ended 31st December 2011, as compared with
the loss attributable to equity holders of the Company
of approximately HK$122.8 million for the year ended
31st December 2010. The basic earnings per share
from continuing operation was approximately HK0.097
cent (2010: basic loss per share of HK0.125 cent).

FINAL DIVIDEND

The board of directors of the Company does not
recommend a final dividend for the year ended 31st
December 2011 (2010: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year of 2011, the Group achieved
satisfactory results leveraging on its extensive
experience and strategic move. We turned around the
operation from a loss to a profit situation.

In view of the unsatisfactory performance of the
seamless steel pipes business and the considerable
strain which this segment placed on the Group’s
internal resources, we have made our strategic
decision to dispose of the seamless steel pipes
segment. The Group completed the disposal in May
2011. We aim at streamlining our business and focus
our resources in developing the trading of pipes and
fittings business.
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Chairman’s Statement
EREHRE

2011 was a challenging year for the Group. The
markets were still very competitive. To strengthen our
core competitiveness, the Group placed more focus
on cost control and effort in sales and marketing. As
a result, our trading of pipes and fittings operation has
achieved a better performance than last year.

PROSPECTS

The Group will continue to develop our trading of
pipes and fittings business in Hong Kong and Macau.
Looking forward, the market competition will continue
to be intense. Against this market condition, the Group
will focus our efforts on sales and marketing of new
products lines, upgrading our products and services
and strengthening our relationships with our customers.
Through these initiatives, we aim at growing out top
line sales and improving our bottom line profits of the
Group.

In addition to the pipes and fittings trading business,
the management will continue to seek investment
opportunities that can potentially bring better returns to
our shareholders.

APPRECIATION
| would like to take this opportunity to express my
gratitude to a team of dedicated and professional

employees for their outstanding performance and to
our shareholders for their persistent support.

Lai Guanglin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 14th March 2012
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Financial Review

For the year ended 31st December 2011, the Group
recorded revenue from the continuing operation of
approximately HK$438.4 milion (2010: HK$385.1
million), representing an increase of 13.8% as
compared to 2010. The profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company for the year ended 31st
December 2011 was approximately HK$13.3 million,
as compared with the loss attributable to equity
holders of the Company of approximately HK$122.8
million in 2010. As previously disclosed, the loss in
2010 mainly resulted from one-off losses relating to
the manufacturing and sale of seamless steel pipes
segment amounted to approximately HK$81.1 million
(mainly included impairment losses on property, plant
and equipment, land use rights and goodwill) and loss
on revaluation of the investment properties amounted
to approximately HK$23.1 million.

The revenue from the continuing operation, contributed
from the segment of trading of pipes and fittings,
increased by 13.8% over that of last year. The profit
after tax from the continuing operation for the year
ended 31st December 2011 was approximately
HK$12.9 milion (2010: loss after tax of HK$16.7
million). The basic earnings per share from the
continuing operation was approximately HK0.097 cent
(2010: basic loss per share of HK0.125 cent).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Review of Operations

Continuing operation
Trading of pipes and fittings

The trading of pipes and fittings reported revenue for
the year of approximately HK$438.4 million (2010:
HK$385.1 million (excluding inter-segment revenug))
and profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
for the year of approximately HK$33.8 million (2010:
HK$15.6 million). In 2011, our sales growth was 13.8%
due to the improving construction sector and greater
effort in sales and marketing. In addition, our gross
profit margin was slightly improved and bad debt
expense was decreased as compared with last year.

Discontinued operations
Manufacturing and sale of seamless steel pipes

In May 2011, the Group completed the disposal of its
entire equity interest in the segment of manufacturing
and sale of seamless steel pipes. As a result, the Group
recorded a gain of approximately HK$1.6 million.

During the period under review, revenue contributed
from the segment of manufacturing and sale of
seamless steel pipes (including the holding companies
of Kiyofo, which was part of the discontinued operation
of the Group) up to the completion of the disposal
amounted to approximately HK$64.5 million (for the
year ended 31st December 2010: HK$131.3 million)
and loss attributable to equity holders of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$1.2 million (excluding
the gain on disposal of subsidiaries amounted to
approximately HK$1.6 million) (for the year ended 31st
December 2010: HK$91.2 million). During the year
of 2010, one-off losses amounted to approximately
HK$81.1 million, which mainly included impairment
losses on property, plant and equipment, land use
rights and goodwill were recognised in the consolidated
income statement.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Investment properties

The Group completed the disposal of investment
properties held in Hong Kong in early 2010 and the
disposal of the entire equity interest in Noble Win
International Limited in December 2010 which was
engaged in investment properties in Mainland China
through its subsidiaries. As such, the segment results
for the year ended 31st December 2010 was presented
under discontinued operation.

After the disposal of the seamless steel pipes segment,
the trading of pipes and fittings remains as the principal
business of the Group. As a result, the Group’s
profitability, liquidity and financial position have been
strengthened. As at 31st December 2011, the working
capital ratio (as measured by current assets to current
liabilities) of the Group was 3.29 (2010: 1.73) and
gearing ratio (as measured by total debt to total equity)
was 24% (2010: 63%).

PROSPECTS

The Group will continue to develop our trading of
pipes and fittings business in Hong Kong and Macau.
Looking forward, the operating environment will remain
competitive. In order to achieve our top line sales
growth and improving our bottom line profits, the
Group will focus our efforts on sales and marketing
of new product lines, upgrading our products and
services and strengthening our relationships with our
customers.

In addition to the pipes and fittings trading business,
the management will continue to seek investment
opportunities that can potentially bring better returns to
our shareholders.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
ANALYSIS

As at 31st December 2011,
balances of the Group were approximately HK$125.3
million (2010: HK$155.0 million) including pledged
bank deposit, which amounted to HK$70.5 million
(2010: HK$92.8 million). Basically the Group’s working
capital requirement has been financed by its internal

the cash and bank

resources. The Group believes that funds generated
from operations and the available banking facilities will
enable the Group to meet its future working capital
requirements.

As at 31st December 2011, the Group had aggregate
banking facilities of trade finance of approximately
HK$101.5 million (2010: HK$233.3 million, of which
representing banking facilities of both trade finance
and term loans), approximately HK$81.3 million
(2010: HK$221.0 million) was utilised. The Group’s
total borrowings stood at approximately HK$69.9
million (2010: HK$174.0 million), the entire amount of
borrowings for both years end will mature within one
year.

The entire amount of borrowings outstanding at 31st
December 2011 of approximately HK$69.9 million
(2010: HK$174.0 million) was subject to floating rates.

The gearing ratio as measured by total debt to total
equity was approximately 24% as at 31st December
2011 (2010: 63%).

As at 31st December 2011, the entire amount of
the Group’s borrowings (2010: 39% of the Group’s
total borrowings) was denominated in HK dollars, no
borrowing (2010: 61% of the Group’s total borrowings)
was denominated in Renminbi.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group conducts its business transactions mainly
in Hong Kong dollar, Renminbi, United States dollar,
Euro and Australian dollar. In order to manage foreign
exchange risk, the Group has been closely monitoring
its foreign currency exposure and will arrange for any
hedging facilities if necessary.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31st December 2011, certain assets held by
subsidiaries of the Group with an aggregate carrying
amounts of approximately HK$70.5 milion (2010:
HK$204.1 million) were pledged to banks for banking
facilities obtained.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities at 31st December 2011. As at 31st December
2010, a subsidiary of the Group in Mainland China
had provided a corporate guarantee, with maximum
exposure of approximately HK$21.9 million, in
favor of a bank to support the banking facilities
of approximately HK$43.9 million obtained by an
independent third party which was required to provide
50% pledged deposit upon drawdown. This guarantee
had been provided as part of counter security
arrangement entered into by the subsidiary with the
independent third party, whereby the independent third
party had also provided corporate guarantee in favor of
the subsidiary for banking facilities up to approximately
HK$47.4 million.

THE®ES

AEBZEBRHETENET AR - EL- BT
FRTTGER - REEIMNERR  NEE-—EEYEE
SN R - MR R R B ZHE o

WEPRL

RZEBE——F+ZA=+—H0 BEAEEZHBEA
A A RE LA 570,500,008 (T —ZTF :
204,100,000 70) 2 & TEECHER TIRITUAEIGR
TREREE o

BARRAR

RZZE——F+ZA=+—H AEETHETFNEKX
SARBE RZE—ZF+_A=1+—H TEER
FEIAH —RMB AR AL BILE = FEEIRT
BhE i mERIT IR 2 A SIEAR4) & 43,900,000 4 7T -
EREAEENS0%HAZBYE = HIREERTR
B - RX &= R4 4521,900,0008 7T © 2 A E
RAMBARMEB Y E=FEIY » A HRERNE
B RREUBIE=7AWBARREDFER -
LAEVSIRTRVE BB E 494 47,400,000 %8 7T °

—ZT——FF3 Annual Report 2011

11



12

Management Discussion and Analysis

CEY R PR

STAFF AND EMPLOYMENT

As at 31st December 2011, the Group employed a
total of 177 employees (2010: 501). Total employee
benefit expenses for the year ended 31st December
2011 was approximately HK$57.9 million (2010:
HK$57.1 million), including both continuing and
discontinued operations.

Remuneration schemes are reviewed annually and
certain staff members are entitled to sales commission.
In addition to the basic salaries and contributions to
the mandatory provident fund, the Group also pays
discretionary bonus and provides staff with other
benefits including medical scheme for Hong Kong
employees. The Group contributes to an employee
pension scheme established by the PRC Government
which undertakes to assume the retirement benefit
obligations of all existing and future retired employees
of the Group in Mainland China.

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£EEERLF
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Biographical details of Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out below:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lai Guanglin

Chairman of the Board of Directors, Chairman of
the Nomination Committee and Member of the
Remuneration Committee

Mr. Lai, aged 48, was appointed as a director and
the Chairman of the board of the directors of the
Company in February 2009. The Company is a
leading provider to the construction sector offering
a wide range of pipe related products, services and
solutions to the constructors, designers, consultants
and government agencies in Hong Kong and Macau.
Mr. Lai’'s wholly owned investment vehicle, Singapore
Zhongxin Investment Company Limited, is the majority
shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Lai is the founder and the Chairman of the board
of directors of Agria Corporation which is listed on
the New York Stock Exchange. Agria Corporation
is primarily engaged in research and development,
production and sale of crop seeds to the agricultural
sector in Australia, New Zealand, China and South
America and the provision of rural services to the
farmers in New Zealand and South America. Agria
Corporation operates the Southern Hemisphere’s
largest forage seed business in New Zealand. The
activities in forage seeds and rural services are carried
out by PGG Wrightson Limited which is a subsidiary of
Agria Corporation. PGG Wrightson is a company listed
on the New Zealand Stock Exchange. Mr. Lai’s wholly
owned investment vehicle, Brothers Capital Limited, is
Agria Coporation’s largest shareholder.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEARCZEE

Mr. Lai has extensive experience in investments,
acquisitions and operation management. Mr. Lai has
established many other enterprises in China, Hong
Kong and internationally, in particular, animation,
logistics and transportation, pharmaceutical sectors,
etc. He takes a leading role in respect of strategic
planning and business development in his investment
portfolio.

Mr. Lai is also the deputy Chairman of Chamber of
Commerce in Shenzhen, China.

Mr. Lai holds a bachelor’s degree in accounting from
Monash University, Melbourne, Australia and is a
certified public accountant in Australia.

During the period of 2003 to 2009, Mr. Lai served
as an independent non-executive director of KXD
Digital Entertainment Limited, a company listed on the
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited. In
December 2009, Mr. Lai was appointed as a director of
PGG Wrightson Limited which is a company listed on
the New Zealand Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lai is the elder brother of Mr. Lai Fulin, an Executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Lai is the sole director of
Singapore Zhongxin Investment Company Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company which has an
interest in the shares of the Company that is required
to be disclosed under Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance.
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Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Yu, aged 47, was appointed as Executive Director
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company in May
2009. Mr. Yu is responsible for managing overall daily
operations of the Group and the implementation of
the Group’s development strategies. Mr. Yu has over
20 years of experience in investment management,
investment banking and general management
of listed companies. Mr. Yu began his career at
Mackenzie Financial Corporation in Toronto, Canada
as an investment analyst in 1989 and since then,
he has served several major financial corporations
including J.P. Morgan, Deutsche Bank and CITIC
Capital. In addition to his vast investment banking and
management experience, Mr. Yu has also managed
listed companies such as New World Cyberbase
Limited and Asia Logistics Holdings Limited in Hong
Kong. During his past career, Mr. Yu has focused
on direct investment and mergers and acquisitions
activities in sectors including construction materials,
infrastructure, energy, technologies, media and financial
services.

Mr. Yu has a Bachelor of Arts degree in English
Literature from the Beijing Foreign Studies University, a
Master of Arts degree in Education from the University
of Toronto and a Master's degree in Business
Administration from the University of Western Ontario.

Mr. Yu is a director of King Jade Holdings Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company which has an
interest in the shares of the Company that is required
to be disclosed under Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance.
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Mr. Lai Fulin
Head of Production & Purchasing

Mr. Lai, aged 46, was appointed as Executive Director
of the Company in October 2009. Mr. Lai is Head of
Production & Purchasing of the Group and mainly
responsible for the overall operation and management
of the production and purchasing department. Mr. Lai
has over 20 years of experience in the banking sector,
investments management and general management
of companies in China. Mr. Lai worked in the Bank of
China in Shenzhen during 1986 to 2001. During 1995
to 2001, he was the deputy general manager of a
subsidiary of Bank of China dealing with businesses in
the securities industry. During 2002 to 2008, Mr. Lai
was the general manager of Shenzhen Huao Guanli
Technologies Company Limited G B & H Rl
EEHBBR AR . Mr. Lai holds a certificate of graduation
in Chinese Language from Shenzhen Institute of
Education CRYIZAE EFE). Mr. Lai is the younger
brother of Mr. Lai Guanglin, the controlling shareholder,
the Chairman and Executive Director of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. U Kean Seng
Member of the Audit Committee

Mr. U, aged 45, was appointed as Non-executive
Director of the Company in February 2009. Mr. U has
more than 16 years of experience in legal practice.
Mr. U specialises in the area of corporate law and
corporate finance. Mr. U was admitted to the Supreme
Court of Victoria, Australia in 1991, the Singapore
Bar in 1993 and the Roll of Solicitors for England and
Wales in 2009. Mr. U holds a bachelor’'s degree in
economics and a bachelor’s degree in laws (Honours)
from Monash University, Australia. Mr. U currently holds
the professional appointment as the Head of Corporate
and Legal Affairs of Agria Corporation, a company
listed on the New York Stock Exchange. Brothers
Capital Limited, an investment vehicle wholly-owned
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by Mr. Lai Guanglin, is the largest shareholder of Agria
Corporation. Mr. U is an independent director of GRP
Limited and Miyoshi Precision Limited, all of which are
companies listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited (the “SGX-ST”). Mr. U served as a non-
executive director of Radiance Group Limited (formerly
known as Radiance Electronics Limited), a company
listed on the SGX-ST, from 21st November 2007 to
2nd December 2009; and as an independent director
of Ossia International Limited, a company listed on the
SGX-ST, from 31st December 2005 to 27th April 2010.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson
Chairman of the Audit Committee

Mr. Wong, aged 44, was appointed as Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in February
2009. Mr. Wong is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
member of Australia CPA and Australasian Institute of
Banking and Finance. He holds a master of commerce
degree, specializing in banking and finance from the
University of New South Wales. With more than 20
years of experience in PricewaterhouseCoopers and
Ernst and Young, Mr. Wong specializes in the area of
auditing banks and listed companies. Mr. Wong is an
independent director of Contel Corporation Limited, a
company listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited.
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Mr. Chen Wei Wen
Member of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee

Mr. Chen, aged 43, was appointed as Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in April 2010.
Mr. Chen holds a Bachelor of Business (Accounting)
from Monash University, Australia. Mr. Chen worked
as a general manager of Guangzhou Futian Trading
Company Ltd.(EMMEAREZERARF) from
1997 to 2005. Since November 2004, Mr. Chen was
appointed as chief operating officer of Guangzhou
Kanxin Polymer Technology Co., Ltd.(BMMELE
SFEHEERAF]) which is an affiliated company
of Guangzhou Futian Trading Company Ltd. (&N
EARNESBERAT]). Mr. Chen was also appointed
as director and general manager of Fuda Enterprises
Limited (ZMERZEAFRAF]) since February 1998.

Ms. Yang Li
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
Member of the Nomination Committee

Ms. Yang, aged 40, was appointed as Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 20th
January 2011. Ms. Yang holds a master degree in
Law from Renmin University of China, specializing
in philosophy, moral and political education. From
July 1993 to May 2005, Ms. Yang taught in Chinese
People’s Public Security University as assistant lecturer,
lecturer and associate professor. From June 2005 to
November 2006, Ms. Yang acted as deputy general
manager of the administration and management
department of China Exhibition Investment and
Development Corporation Ltd. From December 2006
to August 2011, she acted as manager, supervisor
and general manager of the administration department
of MRERULR)PMEHERAT. Ms. Yang has
extensive experience in corporate operation, human
resources and administration and management.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Tsang Wai Yip, Patrick, aged 43, was appointed
as the Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary
of the Company in November 2009. Mr. Tsang is a
fellow member of both the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Tsang had
held various finance positions in a number of listed
companies and has over 20 years of experience in
auditing, accounting, corporate finance and investor
relations.

Mr. Tsang Chung Yin, aged 66, is the Honorary
Chairman of the pipe trading subsidiary, Bun Kee
(International) Limited, a company founded by his father
Mr. Tsang Bun in 1949. He was a former chairman of
the Company and has over 36 years of experience in
managing Bun Kee. Using his extensive experience and
network in the business, he is now actively involved in
the strategic development of Bun Kee. He is a member
of the Institute of Plumbing & Registered Plumber
(U.K)).

Mr. Chan Churk Kai, aged 58, joined the Group in
1978 and is the Managing Director of the pipe trading
subsidiary, Bun Kee (International) Limited. With over
34 years of experience in the trading of pipes, fittings
and other related accessories, he is responsible for the
development and supervision of the sales department.
Mr. Chan is an associate member of the Institute
of Plumbing and Heating Engineering (U.K.), Asian
Institute of Intelligent Buildings and the Hong Kong
Association of Energy Engineers. He is also a member
of Lions Club.
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Ms. Chan Yuk Fan, aged 48, joined the Group in
1982 and is the Sales Director of the pipe trading
subsidiary, Bun Kee (International) Limited. Ms. Chan is
responsible for the Group’s sales operations including
wholesale division, Hong Kong and Macau retail shops
and new product development. She is also responsible
for training new staff members of the sales and
marketing team of the Group. Ms. Chan has over 30
years of experience in the selling of pipes, fittings and
other related accessories.

Mr. Lai Kui Chung, aged 54, joined the Group in
1979 and is the Warehouse Director of the pipe
trading subsidiary, Bun Kee (International) Limited.
Mr. Lai is responsible for the warehouse and
transportation activities of the Group. He has over 32
years of experience in supervising warehouse and
transportation operations. Mr. Lai holds a Certificate in
Store Supervision from a technical institute.

Mr. Ku Chun Ming, aged 46, joined the Group in
1993 and is the Associate Sales Director of the pipe
trading subsidiary, Bun Kee (International) Limited.
Mr. Ku has over 25 years of experience in sales and
marketing activities. He is responsible for the sales
and promotion activities including the exhibitions and
seminars.
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China Pipe Group Limited (the “Company”) is
committed to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance. The board of directors of the Company
(the “Board”) and management maintain and enhance
the policies and practices of the Company on a timely,
transparent, effective and reasonable manner, so as
to maintain good, solid and reasonable corporate
governance. The Company believes that good
corporate governance is not only in the interest of
shareholders and investors but also in the interest of
the Company. The Company will continue to raise the
standard to formalize the best practice of corporate
governance as far as we could.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the code provisions
set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Code”) in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
throughout the year ended 31st December 2011.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

The Board comprises seven directors, including three
executive directors, Mr. Lai Guanglin acting as the
Chairman of the Company, Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng
acting as Chief Executive Officer and Mr. Lai Fulin; a
non-executive Director, Mr. U Kean Seng; and three
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Wong Yee
Shuen, Wilson, Mr. Chen Wei Wen and Ms. Yang Li,
one of whom namely, Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson
has appropriate professional accounting experience
and expertise. Biographical details of the directors
are set out in the section headed “BIOGRAPHICAL
DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT” of this Annual Report.
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On 20th January 2011, Mr. Zhao Yue and Dr. Samuel
Zia resigned as non-executive Directors and Ms. Wu
Xiuru resigned as independent non-executive Director
of the Company. On the same day, Ms. Yang Li was
appointed as independent non-executive Director
of the Company. On 20th August 2011, Mr. Sam
Ming Choy resigned as executive Director and Chief
Operating Officer. On 14th March 2012 , Mr. Lai
Guanglin has been re-designated from a non-executive
Director to an executive Director.

The Board has balance of skills, knowledge and
experience appropriate for the requirements of
the business and to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy. The Board membership is covered
by professionally qualified and widely experienced
personnel to bring in valuable contributions and
different professional advices and consultancy for
development of the Company. All Directors have
separate and independent access to the advice
and services of the senior management and the
company secretary with a view to ensuring the board
procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations are
followed. The principal functions of the Board are to
supervise the management of the business and affairs;
to approve the strategic plans, investment and funding
decision; to review the Group’s financial performance
and operating initiatives.

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible
for the formulation of Group wide strategies and
policies, including an oversight of the management.
Management is responsible for the day-to-day
operations of the Group under the leadership of the
executive Directors.
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To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no
relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material relationship) among members of the
Board, except that Mr. Lai Guanglin, an executive
Director and Chairman of the Company, is the elder
brother of Mr. Lai Fulin, an executive Director of the
Company.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors
has made an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that all the independent non-
executive Directors meet the independence guidelines
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers
that they are independent.

Each of the non-executive Directors (including the
independent non-executive Directors) has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company with a
specific term. All Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting
of the Company in accordance with the bye-laws of the
Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The position of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company are held by separate individuals
since 13th May 2009. The role of the Chairman is
separated from that of the Chief Executive Officer.
Such division of responsibilities helps to reinforce their
independence and accountability.
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On 23rd February 2009, Mr. Lai Guanglin was
appointed as non-executive Director and Chairman
of the Company. Mr. Lai has been re-designated as
executive Director of the Company on 14th March
2012. Mr. Lai has taken up the role of providing
leadership for the Board and ensures that the Board
works effectively and discharges its responsibility
properly. With the support of executive Directors and
the Company Secretary, the Chairman seeks to ensure
that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising
at board meetings and receive adequate and reliable
information in a timely manner. Mr. Lai also ensures
that good corporate governance practice is in force
from time to time, and all key issues are discussed
by the Board in a timely manner. On 13th May 2009,
Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng was appointed as an executive
Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
He is responsible for managing overall daily operations
of the Group and the implementation of the Group’s
development strategies.

Board Committees

A number of Board committees, including audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee, have been established by the Board to
strengthen its functions and to enhance its expertise.
All committees have been formed with specific
written terms of reference which deals clearly with the
committees’ authority and duties.

Board Meetings

The Board meets regularly, and at least four times a
year, additional meetings are convened when deemed
necessary by the Board. Board members are provided
with complete, adequate and timely information to
allow the Directors to fulfill their duties properly. In
addition, Directors have full access to information
on the Group and independent professional advice
whenever deemed necessary by the Directors.
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The Board held eight meetings during the year ended
31st December 2011. Due notice and board papers
were given to all Directors prior to the board meetings
in accordance with the Code. The attendance records
of the board meetings are set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lai Guanglin (Note 1)
Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng

Mr. Lai Fulin

Mr. Sam Ming Choy (Note 4)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. U Kean Seng

Mr. Zhao Yue (Note 3)

Dr. Samuel Zia (Note 3)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson

Mr. Chen Wei Wen

Ms. Yang Li (Note 2)

Ms. Wu Xiuru (Note 3)

Notes:

1. Re-designated from a non-executive Director to an
executive Director on 14th March 2012.

2. Appointed on 20th January 2011.
3. Resigned on 20th January 2011.

4. Resigned on 20th August 2011.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rule (the
“Model Code”). Having made specific enquiry with the
Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have fully
complied with the required standard as set out in the
Model Code during the year ended 31st December
2011.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee
which, as at the date of this report, consists of two
independent non-executive Directors and one non-
executive Director, namely Mr. Wong Yee Shuen,
Wilson, Mr. Chen Wei Wen and Mr. U Kean Seng
respectively. The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr.
Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson who has the appropriate
professional qualifications, accounting and financial
management expertise.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to
assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities
as to the Company’s financial statements, reporting,
internal control and audit findings. The Audit Committee
has met with the Company’s external auditor to
discuss the audit process and internal control issues
raised. A written terms of reference, which describes
the authority and duties of the Audit Committee, are
reviewed and updated by the Board from time to time
to comply with the Code.
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During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed with
the management and the Company’s internal and/
or external auditor, where applicable, their respective
audit findings, the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, legal and regulatory
compliance, internal control, risk management and
financial reporting matters (including the annual financial
statements for the year ended 31st December 2010
and interim financial statements for the period ended
30th June 2011 before recommending them to the
Board for approval). In particular, the Audit Committee
monitored the integrity of financial statements of
the Company and the annual report and accounts
and interim report and accounts of the Company,
discussed such annual report and audited accounts
and interim report and accounts with management
and the Company’s auditors, and reviewed significant
financial reporting judgments contained therein.

The Audit Committee also reviewed and recommmended
to the Board for approval of the 2011 audit fees and
re—appointment of the auditor of the Company.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the
year ended 31st December 2011. The attendance
records of the Audit Committee meetings are set out
below:

Name of members

Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson (Chairman)
Mr. U Kean Seng

Mr. Chen Wei Wen
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a Remuneration Committee.
As at the date of this report, the Remuneration
Committee comprises three members including one
executive Director and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Lai Guanglin, Mr. Chen Wei Wen
and Ms. Yang Li. It is chaired by Ms. Yang Li. A written
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee was
adopted with the reference to the Code.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for
reviewing and recommending remuneration packages
of all Directors and senior management of the
Company to the Board. The remuneration packages
of the non-executive Directors of the Company are
determined by the Board.

The Remuneration Committee held three meetings
during the year ended 31st December 2011. During
the meetings, the remuneration policy, remuneration
packages and bonus arrangements of the Directors
and senior management have been discussed and
approved.
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The

attendance records of the Remuneration

Committee meetings held in 2011 are set out below:

Name of members
Mr. Lai Guanglin (Note 1)
Mr. Chen Wei Wen

Ms. Y

ang Li (Note 2)

Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson (Note 2)

Notes:

1.

Mr. Lai ceased to be the Chairman but remained as a
member of the Remuneration Committee with effect
from 14th March 2012.

Ms. Yang was appointed as a member of Remuneration
Committee in place of Mr. Wong with effect from
20th January 2011. Thereafter, Ms. Yang has been
appointed as the Chairman of Remuneration Committee
with effect from 14th March 2012.

The Remuneration Committee also held two meetings

in January and March 2012

respectively. At the

meeting, the Remuneration Committee considered and

approved the discretionary bonus for the Company’s

Directors and senior management for the year ended
31st December 2011.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a Nomination Committee.
As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee
comprises three members including one executive
Director and two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Lai Guanglin, Mr. Chen Wei Wen and Ms.
Yang Li. It is chaired by Mr. Lai Guanglin. A written
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee was
adopted with reference to the Code.

The primary duty of the Nomination Committee is
making recommendations to the Board on appointment
and removal of directors and management of Board
succession.

In assessing nomination of new Directors, the
Nomination Committee has taken into consideration
of the candidate’s qualification, ability and potential
contribution to the Group.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during
the year ended 31st December 2011. The attendance
records of the Nomination Committee meetings are set
out below:

Name of members

Mr. U Kean Seng (Note 1)

Mr. Chen Wei Wen

Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson (Note 2)
Ms. Yang Li (Note 2)

Notes:

1. Mr. Lai Guanglin (an executive Director and Chairman
of the Company) has been appointed as a member and
the Chairman of Nomination Committee to replace Mr.
U, and Mr. U ceased to be a member and the Chairman
of the Nomination Committee with effect from 14th
March 2012.

2. Ms. Yang was appointed as a member of Nomination

Committee in place of Mr. Wong with effect from 20th
January 2011.
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The Nomination Committee discussed and reviewed
the Board composition of the Company as well as
other related matters. In addition, the Nomination
Committee recommended the appointment of a
director to the Board for approval during the year under
review.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate
system of internal controls within the Group and for
reviewing their effectiveness. The system of internal
controls is designed to facilitate effective and efficient
operations, to safeguard assets and to ensure
the quality of internal and external reporting and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. It is
also designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance that material misstatement or loss can be
avoided, and to manage and minimize risks of failure in
operation systems.

The Board engaged a professional consulting
firm to perform internal control review to assess
the effectiveness of the financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions of
the Company and the Group’s major subsidiaries on a
rotation basis.

At the meeting of the Audit Committee held on
9th March 2012, the professional consulting firm
reported their review work for the year ended 31st
December 2011 performed in accordance with the
detailed risk-based internal control review plan which
was approved by the Audit Committee. The Board,
through the Audit Committee, has conducted a review
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
systems for the year ended 31st December 2011. The
Audit Committee members, together with the senior
management, have also reviewed, considered and
discussed all findings relating to the internal control
systems and recommendations for improvement.
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The Audit Committee also reviewed and was satisfied
with the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting function.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The fees charged by the auditor generally depends on
the scope and volume of the auditor’s work. For the
year ended 31st December 2011, the remuneration to
the auditor of the Company in respect of audit services
was HK$980,000 and fees related to non—audit
services amount to HK$350,000 and HK$266,000 in
relation to the disposal of the entire equity interest in
Merchant Capital Limited and tax advisory services
respectively.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced,
clear and understandable assessment of annual and
interim reports, price-sensitive announcements and
other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and
other regulatory requirements. The senior management
provides such explanation and information to the
Board so as to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of the financial information and position of
the Company.

The responsibilities of the auditor of the Company with
respect to the financial statements of the Group is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 48 to
50.
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GOING CONCERN

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries,
consider that the Company has adequate resources
to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board is obliged to provide regular, effective
and fair communication with shareholders of the
Company. Information is conveyed to the shareholders
of the Company on a timely basis. The Company
uses a range of communication tools to ensure its
shareholders are kept well informed of key business
imperatives. These include general meetings, annual/
interim reports, various notices, announcements and
circulars. Such documents are sent to all shareholders
of the Company and/or its nominees and accessible on
the Company’s website. The detailed procedures for
conducting a poll have been explained by the Chairman
at the general meetings.

Shareholders’ views on matters that affect the
Company are welcome by the Board at shareholders’
meetings. Shareholders of the Company are notified of
shareholders’ meetings through notices and reports or
circulars sent to them. Each item of special business
in the notice of the meeting is accompanied, where
appropriate, by an explanation for the proposed
resolution. A separate resolution is proposed by the
chairman of the meetings in respect of each separate
issue, including the re-election of Directors. The
Chairman of the Board and Chairmen of the Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees or failing
him, his duly appointed delegate, are available at the
annual general meeting to answer questions with
regard to the work of these committees.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) have
pleasure in presenting their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31st
December 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are
set out in Note 35 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segments is set out in Note 5 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st
December 2011 are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 51.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31st December 2011.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is
set out on page 152.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
and of the Company during the year are set out in Note
24 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the distributable reserves of the Company as
at 31st December 2011 are set out in Note 24 to the
financial statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in properties, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in Note 15 to the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the
Company are set out in Note 23 to the financial
statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31st
December 2011 are set out in Note 25 to the financial
statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares
during the year. Neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the
Company’s shares during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on
24th June 2004, a share option scheme (the“Scheme”)
of the Company was approved by shareholders of the
Company. Relevant information relating to the Scheme
is set out as follows:

(@) Purpose of the Scheme
The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the

Company with a flexible means of giving incentive
and/or rewarding the participants.
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(b)

(©)

Participants of the Scheme

The Board may offer to grant options to the
participants which means (i) any Director
(including any executive director, non-executive
director or independent non-executive director)
of any member of the Group; (i) any employee
(whether full-time or part-time) of any member of
the Group; (i) any consultant, adviser, supplier,
customer or sub-contractor of the Group; and (iv)
any other person whatsoever from time to time
determined by the Board as having contributed to
the development, growth or benefit of the Group.

Total number of shares available for issue
under the Scheme

The total number of shares of the Company
which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of
the general meeting of the Company approving
the Scheme. The number of shares may be
refreshed by the approval of the shareholders
and the refreshed limit of the number of shares
must not exceed 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company as the date of the approval of
the refreshed limit. The maximum number of
shares of the Company which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company
must not exceed 30% of the total number of
shares of the Company in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares available for issue
under the Scheme are 838,270,000 Shares,
representing approximately 6.29% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue as at
the date of this report.
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(d)

()

()

(9)

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Total number of shares of the Company issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted to each participant (including exercised
or outstanding options) in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares
in issue as at the date of grant.

Minimum period for options to be held

No minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised unless otherwise
specified in the relevant offer letter.

Period and payment on acceptance of options

Pursuant to the Scheme, HK$10 is payable by
the grantee to the Company on acceptance of
the option within 28 days from the date of grant
of the option.

Basis determining the subscription price

The subscription price of a share in respect
of any particular option granted under the
Scheme shall be a price determined by the
Board and notified to the participants and shall
be at least the highest of (a) the closing price
of the shares as stated in The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
daily quotation sheet on the date on which the
options are deemed to be granted and accepted
in accordance with the terms of the Scheme
(the “Commencement Date”), which must be a
business day; (b) the average closing price of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the Commencement Date;
and (c) the nominal value of the shares.

(d)

(e)

(®

()
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(h)

Life of the Scheme

Subject to earlier termination by the Company at

general meeting or by the Board, the life of the

Scheme commenced from 24th June 2004, date

of adoption, and will end on 23rd June 2014.

Details of options granted, exercised, lapsed,

cancelled and outstanding under the Scheme

during the year are as follows:

Name of Directors
1 403

Lai Fuln /g8
frote 5 fiit5)

U Kean Seng £
frote 5 fiit5)

Wong Yee Shuen, Wison ZJAE

(ot f4)

Chen Wei Wen BEX
(ot 6 Jii6)

Yang Li B3
(rotes 347 Wit 3R

Sam Ming Choy
(oies 445 E4 %8

Zhao Yue

(rotes 145 Wit 1 %9
W Xiuru &5

(rotes 285 Wit2 %9

Employees E2
fotzs 548 FZ5R4)

Employes (8
(note6 fiEE6)
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31212009

5/6/2010

8/6/2011
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31212009

3/12/2009

5/6/2010

AT

Exercise
Price
HKS$
iR
&
0.0M
0.0M
0.0M
0.083
0.0392
0.0m

0.07

0.07

0.071

0.083
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Movement during the year
FhER
Held as at
Held as at 31st December
1st January 201
2011 Granted and N_3--F
RZ8--%  accepted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled T=R=+-A
-f-BK% ERHLER Bfiff B&X ki ] ]
(ot 9
(i29)
50,000,000 - - - - 50,000,000
30,000,000 - - - - 30,000,000
10,000,000 - - - - 10,000,000
10,000,000 - - - - 10,000,000
- 10,000,000 - - - 10,000,000
50,000,000 - - 50,000,000 - -
30,000,000 - - 30,000,000 - -
10,000,000 - - 10,000,000 - -
190,000,000 10,000,000 - 90,000,000 - 110,000,000
375,600,000 - - 120,600,000 - 255,000,000
6,000,000 - - - - 6,000,000
571600000 10,000,000 - 210,600,000 - 371,000,000




Notes:

Resigned as non-executive Director on 20th
January 2011.

Resigned as independent non-executive Director
on 20th January 2011.

Appointed as independent non-executive
Director on 20th January 2011.

Resigned as executive Director on 20th August
2011.

The options granted to these grantees are vested
in stages and be exercised in the following
manner:

Maximum percentage of options exercisable

ATz BEERm BT

20%
20%
20%
20%
20%

The options granted to these grantees are vested
in stages and be exercised in the following
manner:

Maximum percentage of options exercisable

ATz BEERR AN T

20%
20%
20%
20%
20%

The options granted to this grantee are vested in
stages and be exercised in the following manner:

Maximum percentage of options exercisable

ATEZBEEESE L

20%
20%
20%
20%
20%

Vesting of options granted to certain employees
is subject to achievement of profit target.

Pursuant to the Scheme, a total of 10,000,000
options were granted on 8th June 2011 and
accepted by the grantee. The closing price of the
shares immediately before the date on which the
share options were granted was HK$0.038.

Report of the Directors
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Wi -

1. RIE——F A THEBERIENTES -

2. RNIE——F-A-THEBERBUIENTE
=

3 NEBE-——F—A-T+EZERBIUIENTE
=

4. RIE——FN\AZTHBERITES -

5. BTIZEARANBBRESOKEEE LT

BT AT -

Period for exercise of the relevant percentage of the options

TR A O L IR

3/6/2010 — 2/12/2019
3/6/2011 - 2/12/2019
3/6/2012 - 2/12/2019
3/6/2013 - 2/12/2019
3/6/2014 - 2/12/2019

6. RBTIZFABRANBREROEREE - WA

THRITE

Period for exercise of the relevant percentage of the options

TTEEARRE AR A Ot IR

5/11/2010 - 4/5/2020
5/11/2011 - 4/5/2020
5/11/2012 - 4/5/2020
5/11/2013 - 4/5/2020
5/11/2014 - 4/5/2020

7. BIREEANBREES KRS
HAATHE

Period for exercise of the relevant percentage of the options

TTEBRIE A B Dt 2 iR

W T

8/12/2011 - 7/6/2021
8/12/2012 - 7/6/2021
8/12/2013 - 7/6/2021
8/12/2014 - 7/6/2021
8/12/2015 - 7/6/2021

8. RTYETREEZBEEAZEIEMNBESAIRE

THHESR -

9.  RIREFEI - 4$£10,000,000 BRI MHEN =T ——
FRANBRLH @ LRBIFREAZER - ROKE

ERERER L E BRIRMEA0.038 T ©
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Details of the fair value of options granted under the
Scheme during the year ended 31st December 2011
and the accounting policy adopted for the options are
set out in Note 8 and Note 2 to the financial statements
respectively.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Apart from the share option scheme of the Company,
at no time during the year was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up
to the date of this report are:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lai Guanglin (Chairman)(Note 1)

Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Lai Fulin

Mr. Sam Ming Choy (Chief Operating Officer)
(Resigned on 20th August 2011)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. U Kean Seng (Note 2)
Mr. Zhao Yue (Resigned on 20th January 2011)
Dr. Samuel Zia (Resigned on 20th January 2011)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson (Note 2)

Mr. Chen Wei Wen (Note 2)

Ms. Yang Li (Appointed on 20th January 2011) (Note 2)
Ms. Wu Xiuru (Resigned on 20th January 2011)

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£EEERLF

EREE—_T——F+-_A=+—HEFEREHZ
BEHBEENAAEBREBEBRENSSTERRNFE
7RI B B RS IR RE 8 S PR 2 ©

EFNMERORRSFHET

BAD 2 MRS RIS A NEMERY - AR
ARREANEL B BB RITTETRY - BEA
NCE P TN B2 e
S -

¥

FARBEARERRZARAESRR -

BITESE

Lai Guanglin 54 (/) (ffat 1)

MRS E (BEHTE)

FBrEBE

Sam Ming Choy o4& (B /E £# E )
(R=ZFE——F A=+ HEF)

FRITESE

REER AL (5t 2)
BURE (R=F——F A=+ HET)
SERE L (R-F——F—H -1 HEE)

BIUFRITES

HIMEEE (K152

PRI ST (K177 2)

BRMZET (R_FE——F— A=+ HEZE)(HiZ2)
RENLYT (R=ZF——F— A=+ HEFIT)



Notes:

1. Mr. Lai Guanglin has been re-designated from a non-
executive Director to an executive Director with effect
from 14th March 2012. Mr. Lai has entered into a new
letter of appointment with the Company with no specific
term of service.

2. Mr. U Kean Seng, Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson, Mr.
Chen Wei Wen and Ms. Yang Li have entered into
letters of appointment with the Company respectively
for a term commencing from 1st January 2012 to 31st
December 2012.

In accordance with bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws of the
Company, Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng, Mr. Lai Fulin and Mr.
Chen Wei Wen will retire from office by rotation and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each independent
non-executive Director an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and the Company considers that all of them are
independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and senior
management are set out in the section headed
“BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT” of this annual report.

Report of the Directors
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1. BT —F=A+WAR  Lai GuanglinftAEHRIEH
TEEERATANTES - Lait £ B EBARQ BT SIH
SRR - WEIEETH -

2. RERKE - BUMERE  BEXEARBGHZEIED
RIEARAREINEBERK - FHH-T——F—A—HZE
—E——F+-A=+—Hik-

RIBARFNRBMANE G - s ExE - BREE
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

None of the Directors offering themselves for re—
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company has entered into any service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries, which
is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance in relation to the
Company’s business to which the Company, its
subsidiaries or its holding company was a party and
in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

Significant related party transactions entered by the
Group during the year ended 31st December 2011 are
disclosed in Note 31 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors and their respective associates
has an interest in any business which competes or
may compete with the business in which the Group
engaged.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

The interests of the directors in the share options of
the Company are separately disclosed in the section
headed “SHARE OPTION SCHEME” above.

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£EEERLF

EERBHESH

RARBEIKBITZRRAFAE LBEBEET L
EEMERANRRREEFMMBRRRT TR —F
WBEMNEEE OXERERSN) M L2 EAREE
e

EFEREXENhZER

AR BB AR REZER DR A EA
RAERGERMARREENETEERKRAERAE
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EE TR TN T L LTS e
BB BT 2 (LT -
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As at 31st December 2011, the interests and short
positions of the Directors and chief executive of
the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were set out below:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares

Report of the Directors
EFEEERE

RZEBE——F+ZA=+—08 KRAESRFENT
BAERARARSEF AR EZE (ERRELRAE
=t ([ 35 5 R EAE &M ]) 8B XV BD) KIRR 19 ~ ABRARR D
EEFT - EEBETLRARRIREES RS G
E 352 RE T BRMeERmguAR - BERE EHA
RIEFETESFRZNEESTR([ZEFR ) ME R
NRAIRERFT 2 fEmsOA B AT -

RAEXTRDRAEBRG 2HFR

of the Company
Approximate
percentage
Number of shares of the Company of shares
L NGRA L in issue
Personal Family  Corporate Other {FERTT
Name of Directors Capacity Interests Interests Interests Interests Total B
EEfS L] BA#R REER pALL £ s &5t Bl
Lai Guanglin Interest of controlled - 7,705,521,207 - 7,705,521,207 57.7%%
corporation (note 1412 1)
REREERER
Yu Ben Ansheng Beneficial owner/Interest 30,000,000 - 1,460,000,000 - 1,490,000,000 11.18%
a%E of controlled corporation (rote 2032)
BB\ /RN EEER
Notes: Bt %
1. These shares are held by Singapore Zhongxin 1. %% 15 Fa Singapore Zhongxin Investment Company

Investment Company Limited (“Singapore Zhongxin”),
which is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Lai
Guanglin, an executive Director and Chairman of
the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Lai is deemed to be
interested in such shares under the SFO.

2. These shares are held by King Jade Holdings Limited
(“King Jade”), which is wholly and beneficially owned by
Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng, an executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Yu
is deemed to be interested in such shares under the
SFO.

Limited ([Singapore Zhongxin|)#%4 + A &M Lai
GuanglinE £ (RRAIZHITESHRER) 2 EE = HE
Ao Bt - IREBEFHREERD - Lai B ERR R Z
ERDPEERER

2. 5B HKing Jade Holdings Limited ([ King Jade |)#f

B ZAFHATEL (KRR ZATESRERNT
BIREERER - Bt - BEBESFRATKD - a1k
ERRBNZER D P AR
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Save as disclosed above and in the section headed
“SHARE OPTION SCHEME” above, as at 31st
December 2011,
executive or their respective associates had any

none of the Directors or chief
interests or short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st December 2011, the interests or short
positions of the following persons or corporations,
other than the Directors or chief executive of the
Company, in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO
were as follows:

Long position in share and underlying share of the
Company

Name of Shareholders Capacity
BREE 57

Singapore Zhongxin
(note 1473 1)

Li JuanZ 15 Interest of spouse it (B35
(note 2113 2)

King Jade Beneficial owner E&#A A
(note 3111+ 3)

Zhang Lin Interest of spouse Bt B &
(note 447 4)

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&EERAR

Beneficial owner 23 H A

X Rm—6 [ BREE ] rREEIN RZF
——F+-_A=t—H BEEFARZRSTHAEL

BESBZBBEATRARRSREEMEREE (EE

&7 MR RGBS XV 5B ) MR D - AEREAR (D R (B
o BHEAETHRARRIREE S M E GPIE 352 15
FEZECMzERIAR  HARBEETRING
ARB R P 2 EERFORR

FERR

REFB——F+-_A=1t—H8 UFTALTIEE(LX
PR 2 ARRIEFHZSITRABRIN RAR TR
RO EERECR AR RAIREESF M E K
PI1% 336 IRFE 2 Bz ek BT ¢

RELBDRGREBERD ZHR
Approximate
Number of percentage
shares/underlying of shares in issue
shares held EERTR
FiisiiR RN E #haaL
7,705,521,207 57.79%
7,705,521,207 57.79%
1,460,000,000 10.95%
1,490,000,000 11.18%



Notes:

1. Singapore Zhongxin is wholly and beneficially owned by
Mr. Lai Guanglin, an executive Director and Chairman
of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Lai is deemed to be
interested in such shares under the SFO.

2. Ms. Li Juan, the spouse of Mr. Lai Guanglin, is also
deemed to be interested in Mr. Lai’s interest in the
Company under the SFO.

3. King Jade is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr.
Yu Ben Ansheng, an executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Yu
is deemed to be interested in such shares under the
SFO.

4. Ms. Zhang Lin, the spouse of Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng, is
also deemed to be interested in Mr. Yu’s interest in the
Company under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2011,
the Company had not been notified by any persons or
corporations, other than the Directors or chief executive
of the Company, who had interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Group were entered into or existed
during the year.
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2. REFHFERBAEEKD - FE2 L (Lai Guanglin o4 2 Bd

18) TR R TE S Lai SR AE AR R 2 2 o

3. King Jade hEEIRAESE (R RBIZHITESREEH

TE)2EERNER - Bt - RESHFLBERERD - &
FTEWRG RN ZERD PR AR

4. WREFFREBEED] - Zhang Lin+ (B1& &4 2 B

18) TR R A A1 R ENA R E) 2 s o
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the
year attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and
customers are as follows:

Purchases
—the largest supplier 15.44%
— five largest suppliers combined 45.35%
Sales
— the largest customer 4.39%
— five largest customers combined 15.07%

None of the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)
had an interest in the major suppliers or customers
noted above.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE
ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the code provisions
set out in the Code of Corporate Governance Practices
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
throughout the year ended 31st December 2011.
Details of the audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee are set out in the
“CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT” of this annual
report.

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£EEERLF
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company currently consists
of Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson and Mr. Chen Wei
Wen as independent non-executive Directors and Mr. U
Kean Seng as non-executive Director.

By reference to “A Guide for The Formation of An Audit
Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, written terms of reference
which describe the authority and duties of the audit
committee were prepared and adopted by the Board of
the Company.

The annual results have been reviewed by the audit
committee of the Company.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors,
the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float required under the Listing Rules as at the date of
this report.

AUDITOR
The financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible,

offer themselves for re—appointment.

By Order of the Board

Lai Guanglin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 14th March 2012
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Independent Auditor’s Report
I BEh iR

_
pwc

To the shareholders of China Pipe Group Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of China Pipe Group Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on
pages 51 to 151, which comprise the consolidated
and company balance sheets as at 31st December
2011, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&EHERAR
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Auditor’s Responsibility

QOur responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit
and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 31st December 2011,
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 14th March 2012

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&EHERAR
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Continuing operation:
Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Other gains, net
Selling and distribution costs

General and administrative expenses

Operating profit/(loss)
Finance costs, net

Profit/(loss) before income tax
Tax expense

Profit/(loss) for the year
from continuing operation

Discontinued operations:
Seamless steel pipes
Investment properties

Loss for the period/year
from discontinued operations

Profit/(loss) for the year

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings/(loss) per share
Basic and diluted
From continuing operation
From discontinued operations

Dividend

The notes on pages 59 to 151 are an integral part of

these financial statements.

Consolidated Income Statement
Relax

Note
B &E

FELERT
WA
HEMRA

EH

HAth Yz 5 58
SHE K AR
—RRITHER

RN (BR)
[y gzbeit ] 9
FansF, (E8)
HEL 10
BIELEER

ZEERF, (EE)

AP EBRT -
HELE T & 11(a)
"B 11(b

R EE TS
ZHNFEER

FREMN,(B18)

~ O

N~ o

-

4G
RRBRERB A
TR e

BREF, (EE) 13
HEAR NS
SIEEIBETS
BB RS

For the year ended 31st December 2011
HE-_ZT——F+=-A=1—HILFE

Restated

<=l

2011 2010
—E2—5 —ET-FF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET BT
438,395 385,145
(330,014) (293,197)
108,381 91,948
5,442 508
(13,604) (9,621)
(83,588) (88,617)
16,631 (5,782)
(967) (7,449)
15,664 (13,231)
(2,791) (3,434)
12,873 (16,665)
(148) (135,563)

- (14,855)

(148) (150,418)
12,725 (167,083)
13,280 (122,769)
(555) (44,314)
12,725 (167,083)
HK cent HK cent
&l AL
0.097 (0.125)
0.003 (0.796)
0.100 (0.921)
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FERT FATT

F59F 151 B Z Kt Bt ST ERER 2 AR5 -

—ZT——FF3% Annual Report 2011

51



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

= A, AN
ReZzElaE
For the year ended 31st December 2011
HE-T —F+-A=t+—BLFE

2011 2010
—Z2—% —E-TF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
FiEE THT FIT
Profit/(loss) for the year FEwM,/(EER) 12,725 (167,083)
Other comprehensive income: Hih 2 mEURES -
Currency translation differences BRI E = 577 4,617
Release of exchange reserve upon BRHEWB AR 29(b)(i)
disposal of subsidiaries 2 B W 7= RE 2 [B] 1 & (ii) (4,773) (15,488)
Total comprehensive income FERTE AW SBEE
for the year, net of tax 8,529 (177,954)
Attributable to: FE1S -
Equity holders of the Company RRRBAEREB A 9,261 (183,747)
Non-controlling interests FERE SIS (732) (44,207)
8,529 (177,954)
Total comprehensive income attributable A BIIERH A
to equity holders of the Company: FEIE 2N LR ¢
Continuing operation RIEEEER 12,796 (15,987)
Discontinued operations iR EEETE (3,535) (117,760)
9,261 (133,747)

There was no tax impact relating to the components of
other comprehensive income for the years ended 31st
December 2010 and 2011.

The notes on pages 59 to 151 are an integral part of
these financial statements.

52 China Pipe Group Limited HEIEZ£EERAF
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ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Land use rights

Deferred tax assets

Rental deposits and other assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Pledged bank deposit
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

The notes on pages 59 to 151 are an integral part of

these financial statements.

RE

FRBEE

TibfE AE
EEHBAEE
BAEe M EMEE

mERE

e

B 5 KA EAFIR
BRRTER
ReRReEHEY

HRRE

Consolidated Balance Sheet

Note
B zE

15
16
26
20

19
20
21
22

HFeERERRSK

As at 31st December 2011
R=F——F+=-A=1+—H

2011 2010
=2——F —F-BF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAT
5,296 10,109

- 28,462

97 4,578
4,853 3,196
10,246 46,345
160,825 230,545
126,598 166,446
70,450 92,789
54,869 62,230
412,742 552,010
422,988 598,355

F 59 E 151 B Z M AU FETEME 2 BRER -
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

HeERERRR

As at 31st December 2011
et e e — 5]

EQUITY

Equity holders
Share capital
Reserves - others

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Amount due to a related company
Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder
Taxation payable

Borrowings

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities
Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Lai Guanglin
Director E%

The notes on pages 59 to 151 are an integral part of

these financial statements.

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&EHERAR

Note
(=3

£t

BRIESEA

e 23
it — HAth 24
FEREGIMER

wigs

AR

FRBAR
EERARR 26

mEAR
B 5 R EM RN TR 27
R —RBIE R AR 31
FERN — AR HIMERR R R 31
FENHIE

fE& 25

RAR
BEGRAR
mERERHE

REERTDHRE

Yu Ben Ansheng SiR4
Director %

2011 2010
=2——% —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TH#T FAT
26,665 26,665
270,792 059,742
297,457 286,407
- (11,114
297,457 275,293
- 4,541
54,725 142,837
876 876

- 17

5 749
69,925 174,042
125,531 318,521
125,531 323,062
422,988 598,355
287,211 233,489
297,457 279,834

F£59E 151 H 2 MR FMBHRR 2 AKEED



ASSETS

Non-current assets
Plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets
Deposits, prepayments

and other receivables
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY

Equity holders
Share capital
Reserves — others

Total equity

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Other payables

Amounts due to subsidiaries

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities
Net current liabilities

Total assets less current liabilities

Lai Guanglin
Director %

The notes on pages 59 to 151 are an integral part of

these financial statements.

Note
BtzE
HE
FERBHEE
s Mk E 15
RHTBRARIERE 17
mEEE
&’& - B
N E e W 308 20
FEU B B A B ZIA 17
Re KB EEY 22
wEE
S
BREBEA
e 23
R —Ef 24
wiEs
=1
bd A=K
Hib e RUA 27
FERTFH B A BIZIE 17
HEaR
HESRAR
mEARPHE
WEERRBAR

Yu Ben Ansheng Bi &%
Director %

Balance Sheet
BEARE

As at 31st December 2011
R=_F—F+-_A=+—H

2011 2010
—E——f —T-Tf
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT Tt
177 224
89,205 88,482
89,382 88,706
256 1,328
15,540 28,479
245 680
16,041 30,487
105,423 119,193
26,665 26,665
(18,253) (15,598)
8,412 11,067
6,758 8,148
90,253 99,978
97,011 108,126
105,423 119,193
80,970 77,639
8,412 11,067

59 E 151 B Z M AU FRTEMER 2 HKERS -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HFeERERE

For the year ended 31st December 2011
HE-T —F+-A=t+—BLFE

At 1st January 2010

Loss for the year

Qther comprehensive income:

Currency translation differences

Release of exchange reserve
upon disposal of subsidlaries

Total comprehensive
income for the year

Transactions with owners:;
Share based payment

At 31st December 2010

R-F-25--H

EEBR
Ep2Eia
ERAEZR
HEWBRFZ
iR RS

FREEbE
ot

EREARS
WA BEERREO MK

HB-BEA=t-F

Equity holders
RignaEA
Share
based Non-
Share  Share Capital Merger Exchange payment Retained controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Sub-total interests  Total
HERHE 30
Bk RIVRE EXRE AHEE ERGHEEROHR REEN 0 M #ER 8§
Note HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$000
fiir THT TET TET THT THET TET TET TET TET TER
26606 126618 34116 3700 16913 718 206321 415050 33093 448143
- - - - - - (122,769) (122,769) (44,314) (167,083)
- - - - 4510 - - 4510 107 4617
29(0)i
- - - - (15489 - - (15489) - (15489)
- - - - (10,978) - (122,769) (133,747) (44,207) (177,954)
- - - - - 5104 - 5104 - 5104
26006 126618 34116 3700  593% 582 83552 286407 (11,114 275293

The notes on pages 59 to 151 are an integral part of

these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Note

Izt
Attt January 2011 N5
-R-A
Proft for the year ERT

Other comprehensive income: -2 :

Curency ranslaton difierences EEAEZE

Release of exchange resenve  HEHEAT 29b)
upon disposal of subsidaries  ZEREEZEE ()&

Total comprefensive EREENE

income for the year %

Transactions withowners: ~ EEAA 25 :
Share based payment Wk BER
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR 2900
Tranfer o statutoryreserne. ~ BEZATHIE
Transfer uponlapse REREX R
of share aptions &7

At 315t December 2011 NF——F
+Zh=1-H

FeHREERR

For the year ended 31st December 2011
HE-_Z——F+-A=1+—HILFE

Equity holders
RiEREA
Share
based Non-
Share  Share  Capital  Merger Statutory Exchange payment Retained controlling
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve eamings Sub-total interests Total
URhE Sl
Rt KGER HAGHE SHER EERE EREE ERNMR REAN 0 M #ER &8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$000
Tén TEnT TET TET TET TER TERL TER TER TER TER
2,665 126618 34115 3700 - 5905 582 83552 286407  (11,114) 275208
- - - - - - - 13280 13280 (555) 12,725
- - - - - 754 - - 754 (i1 517
- - - - - 41y - - 4T - amy
- - - - - (4019 - 13260 9,261 132 8529
- - - - - - 18 - 18 - 178
- - - - - - - - - 11846 11846
- - - - b - - (24) - - -
- - - - - - (957) 957 - - -
- - - - % - 832 933 1,789 11846 13635
26,665 126618 34115 3700 24 1916 6654 07765 297,457 - 07457

The notes on pages 59 to 151 are an integral part of £59ZF 151 B 2 M Rt EMBHmKR 2 KD -

these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= A, W=

e nRER

For the year ended 31st December 2011
HE-T —F+-A=t+—BLFE

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from/(used in) operations
Interest paid

Interest received

Income tax paid

Net cash generated from/
(used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of asset held-for-sale
Disposal of subsidiaries — continuing operation
Disposal of subsidiaries —

discontinued operations

Net cash (used in)/from
investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Drawdown of borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Drawdown of loan from a shareholder
Repaymentof loan from a shareholder
Repayment of amount due

to a related company
Increase in pledged bank deposit

Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in
cash and cash equivalents

Exchange differences

Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

The notes on pages 59 to 151 are an integral part of

these financial statements.

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&EHERAR

Note
BT

RERBZBARE

mEEBEL/ (MR 2RE
BENHME
BEHAHIE
EMEH

KERHEL/
(Frf) R %

REEBZRENE

29(a)

YNYE R e
HEME - B

PE LS
HEREHEBEMSHR
HEHRB AR -HELERS
HEMH B AR -
RIEEERE

R&ES (PR,
PSR e %8

MREHZRENE

RREE
EEREE
A —BBRER
B —BBCRER
EEEN—KBE
NTERE

EIRITRE N
RELRDMARSFR

ReRALSEN ()
%

3

2R R

ReEEN

FRZ\GRREEEN

2011 2010
—g——% —2-%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
13,566 (2,083)
(4,231) (23,991)
601 307
(3,595) (1,332)
6,341 (27,099)
(921) (2,187)

115 22

- 114,680

(2,072) -
(5,086) 161,235
(7,964) 273,750
219,025 372,539
(216,411) (481,108)
4,000 -
(4,000) (54,360)

- (23,468)
(8,599) (53,674)
(5,985) (240,069)
(7,608) 6,582
247 (136)
62,230 55,784
54,869 62,230
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Notes to the Financial Statements

General information

China Pipe Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are
principally engaged in trading of construction
materials, mainly pipes and fittings.

The Company is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. The address of its
registered office is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda. The Company
has its primary listing on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Hong
Kong Stock Exchange”).

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.

During the past two years, the major changes in
the Group are as follows:

(i) In December 2010, the Group completed
the disposal of the entire equity interest
in Noble Win International Limited,
(which holds investment properties in
Mainland China through its subsidiaries)
at a cash consideration of approximately
RMB139,303,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$162,666,000). Gain on disposal
of approximately HK$12,847,000 was
recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

(i)  On 26th April 2011, the Company entered
into a sale and purchase agreement with
Xiang Feng Holdings Limited in relation to
the disposal of the entire equity interest
in Merchant Capital Limited, which was
engaged in seamless steel pipes business
in Mainland China through its indirect
60% equity interest owned subsidiary,
namelyE =S W EEBZEWMERR A
Al (Yantai Kiyofo Seamless Steel Pipe
Co., Ltd.)(“Kiyofo”). The consideration
was RMB5,200,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$6,262,000). The disposal
was completed in May 2011. A gain on
disposal of subsidiaries of approximately
HK$1,569,000 was recognised in the
consolidated income statement. Further
details are set out in Note 11(a).

M RERME

—RE#H

FREEXEEARAR(ARA]) MEKEAR
(ifg [ Al ) TEREZEMN(ETERRE
MEH) 2B -

ARRA—HEEREFMERILZBRAF @ T
= Eaf % Canon’ s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda ° &AA RIFEE S
RGMBRAR(EBHRAT]) EIR1EE — £
M o

BRIERBFTE, AU FBHRERIAABTTZES ©
BEMF  AEEZTEZBMT

() R-IZE—ZTFE+_F AEETHKHEH
AEBRARAR GEAEWBARIFELAN
FREAKNIEEYE) 2T RAER -
HWERELN A AR 139,303,000 7T (HH5%E
R #9162,666,000/870) » tHE 2 WS4 A
12,847,000 8 70 E R 4r & R R N FERR ©

iy MRZEBE—FWA=+/"H  AQArFHF
LR ERARFLEEHREAREERE
HERARZERAEZ  ERARAA
FEFBEMERSH60% BT B
RA(EEcHEEENERERAR (&
B D) AP ER Y S EANE R -
HERE A AR 5,200,000 7T (FHERL
6,262,000%7C) - HEFBER T ——%F
A AT @ BB 2 WEH R 1,569,000 7T
ERERA KRR NER - #— B
RHIEE11(@) °
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Basis of preparation and accounting
policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in
the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) under
the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in
the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed
in Note 4.

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&EHERAR

Notes to the Financial Statements
B F iR =M E

2.

RNEERERTRE

TXHI RN FGREMBRRBRAZEES
TR » BRIEZBATIE - FIERARBREBEF
EFT 28— -

RAEMBRRDIREEEWHRE
BIRELE E'JJ)%;zTi)ﬂZZMﬂﬁ‘Jfﬁﬁ‘w

R ([ & EH

BREEMBREEARHIMHRE - ARER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

Adoption of new or revised standards and
amendments to existing standards

The Group has adopted the following revised
standard and amendments to existing standards,
which are mandatory for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1st January 2011 and
relevant to the Group.

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party

Disclosures

HKFRSs Amendments Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010

The Group has assessed the impact of the
adoption of these revised standard and
amendments to existing standards and
considered that there was no significant impact
on the Group’s results and financial position
nor any substantial changes in the Group’s
accounting policies and presentation of the
consolidated financial statements except the
following:

HKAS 24 (Revised) amends the definition of
related party and clarifies its meaning. This
may result in changes to those parties who
are identified as being related parties of the
reporting entity. The Group has reassessed the
identification of its related parties in accordance
with the revised definition and concluded
that the revised definition does not have any
material impact on the Group’s related party
disclosures in the current and previous years.
HKAS 24 (Revised) also introduces simplified
disclosure requirements applicable to related
party transactions where the Group and the
counterparty are under the common control, joint
control or significant influence of a government,
government agency or similar body. These
new disclosures are not relevant to the Group
because the Group is not a government related
entity.

M RERME

RREER SRR ()

BRANHRT RERT ER R R A ER ST

AREBERA N IIEAEE X RBRORLETE
AR BB LR 2 ER] - WoRBIERER —F—
F-A—HERBNSH IR R BRET

EEahes) WEALRE
5 24 % (18{52T)

ERMBMSE B TEIEEH
AT TSR A

BN T XERE  AEEDHERMNZFEERTE
AIRERBRA 2 BIR T E  RAYAKH
ZERERBBRRLBEATE  MAKEZE
ABRNGEAEMBRERZ 2T TMEERNEAR

BE G ERFE 245 (RIER]) BB A L2
EEHERTUEBEEE - GBI LS EN
WRHBRBEERNAEALTNZFTALHIRE
¥ o AREEEFNFGERBEETER S ERE
ATETEOBER - TR BEETERZHAEER
RERR E—FENBEATRETEREIMNE
7& 8 o BB GERE 245 (KIEFT) ol

RERAEERBEFHRET - BUF#RESK
%EM%% CEZES] - BFEBIEBRZENBN
TIRAEALRZOBERERE - ARAEHE
VHBAEEER R FHEBERAANKEL A
Vil
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MR RO

2. Basis of preparation and accounting

policies (cont’d)

Adoption of new or revised standards and
amendments to existing standards (cont’d)
The following new or revised standards and

amendments to existing standards have been

published and are relevant to the Group’s

operations. They are mandatory for the Group’s

accounting periods beginning on or after 1st

January 2012 or later periods, the Group has not

early adopted them:

Amendments
to HKFRS 7

Amendments

to HKFRS 7

Amendments
to HKAS 1

Amendments

to HKAS 12

Amendments
to HKAS 32

HKAS 19 (2011)

HKAS 27 (2011)

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

China Pipe Group Limited

Disclosures —
Transfers of
Financial Assets

Disclosures —
Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial
Liabilities

Presentation of
ltems of Other
Comprehensive
Income

Deferred Tax —
Recovery of
Underlying Assets

Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial
Liabilities

Employee Benefits

Separate Financial
Statements

Financial Instruments

Consolidated Financial
Statements

Joint Arrangements

Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities

Fair Value Measurement

RHNEERSTRE ()

RAFATARETEARBREED 2

&3] (&)

AT /S B B BN SR B A5 AR R RO FT 5T AR IERT
ERI MR AERER] - REBERGIANR_-F
——F—-A-BAHARNETHEKNERAEE

17 EARREALEER R R -

BEIHR
ZIEFT

HEANF 7R

ERMBREENE 75
ZIERT

FRGRTEAE 1R
ZIERT

BAEDETERFE 1257
ZAEE]

ERGTTERIFE 325
ZAEE]

ERGTIERIFE 195

—
BFRGRTERIE 27
—_=—)

BBV ELEAE R
BT EREERE 1057

i

BIIS5 1158
BIZ5 125%

BBHEIRE
BTG

[

+

BBEIREERF 135

BE-EEDR

BE
WEE—EHD R
BEREMAE

25 E el
EH

EER TR — =
HEAEE

HHTREE
kE@aE

EEEF
B REK

TRTA
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

Adoption of new or revised standards and
amendments to existing standards (cont’d)
The Group has already commenced an
assessment of the impact of these new or revised
standards and amendments to existing standards
but is not yet in a position to state whether they
would have a significant impact on its results of
operations and financial position.

(@) Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements
include the financial statements of the
Company and all of its subsidiaries made
up to 31st December.

(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including
special purpose entities) over
which the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a
shareholding of more than one half
of the voting rights. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls
another entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group.
They are de-consolidated from the
date that control ceases.

2.

M RERME

RREER SRR ()

RAFATARETEARBREED 2
&5 (&)

REBE A UL F AT SRR R
BEAERIMZE - BHAEELRESE Y
LEXRE IR RNENEATE

(@ #LREERE
REMBRERBEARAREMEHBA
AIEBET-_A=1+—H8IMIEHEK -

G HEBRA
ERpESPNCIEERNSEI Sy 22 BN b )N
L ERARNAAER(EREBREDN
BER) AEBRAHEBYEERER-
RHEAREREES S —BER
SERIRE A ITER AR BEER
SRNFERTE - B AREES

REREASEZHEEZEAS
Bk - B A BEEGIER L BEE

IR SN=WN:
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B F iR =M E

2.

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(a)

Consolidation (cont’d)

(i)

Acquisitions

The Group applies the acquisition
method to account for business
combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisiton of a
subsidiary is the fair value of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred and
the equity interests issued by the
Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset
or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as
|dentifiable assets acquired
and liabilites and contingent liabilities

incurred.

assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. On an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the
Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net
assets. The excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and
the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If this is less than the fair value of the
net assets of the subsidiary acquired
in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the
consolidated income statement.

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&EHERAR

2.

RHNEERSTRE ()
@ #H&aikE (8

(i)

Wig
AEBZEZHAHERREEEANR -
WE—RMBAR < EERERER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(@) Consolidation (cont’d)

(i)

Acquisitions (cont’d)

Inter-company transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary in the consolidated
financial statements to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Investments in subsidiaries are carried
on the balance sheet of the Company
at cost together with advances by
the Company which are neither
planned nor likely to be settled in the
foreseeable future, less provision for
impairment. Provision for impairment
in a subsidiary is made when the
recoverable amount of the subsidiary
is lower than the Company’s
respective cost of investment. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

M RERME

2. WEBEREHEGE)

@@ #HEKRE (&)

(i)

Wi (&)

SERRZENRS - BERMARE
Wes I B PR - REREBRTTE
# o MEREMIEHmERT - MEBARN
SETBRCHEAFTERIFLNE -
R B R B SRV BUR — B0 »

RIBARMRERKAER A AT
RN B R (AL ET S HIFEHR AR
#REE ) HBRRE R BN AR A
MEERBERIK - ENBARRR
YEEBERARREBREKAN
(SR N/NCTY AL b = NCTR (el AR
e ARBFMBARNEEZEK
R EW R BARR
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B F iR =M E

2.

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(a)

Consolidation (cont’d)

(i)

Transactions with non-controlling
interests

The Group treats transactions
with non-controlling interests as
transactions with equity owners of
the Group. For purchases from non-
controlling interests, the difference
between any consideration paid
and the relevant share acquired of
the carrying value of net assets of
the subsidiary is recorded in equity.
Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded
in equity.

When the Group ceases to have
control or significant influence, any
retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value, with
the change in carrying amount
recognised in consolidated income
statement. The fair value is the initial
carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In
addition,

recognised in other comprehensive

any amounts previously

income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(b)

()

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in
a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker has been identified as the
Board of Directors. The Board of Directors
is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of operating
segments. Operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segment has similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect
of the nature of products, the nature of
production processes and the type or class

of customers.

Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial
statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional

and presentation currency.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B F iR =M E

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(c) Foreign currency translation (cont’d)

(i)

(i)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions
or revaluation where items are
remeasured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the
income statement.

Group companies

The results and financial position
of all the Group entities (none
of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated
into the presentation currency as
follows:

= assets and liabilities for each
balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR =M E

2. Basis of preparation and accounting 2. RUBERSHBFR (&)
policies (cont’d)

(c) Foreign currency translation (cont’d) (c) ‘s (&)

(i) Group companies (cont’d)

— income and expenses for
each income statement are
translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not
a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

= all resulting exchange
differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign operations, and of
borrowings and other currency instruments
designated as hedges of such investments,
are taken to other comprehensive income.
When a foreign operation is partially
disposed of or sold, exchange differences
that were recorded in equity are recognised
in the consolidated income statement as
part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on the acquisition of a foreign entity are
treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing
rates at the balance sheet date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B F iR =M E

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, comprising
buildings, leasehold improvements, plant
and machinery, equipment, furniture and
fixtures and motor vehicles are stated
at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition

of the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the
asset’s carrying amount or recognised
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance expenses
are charged to the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate their costs to their
residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(d)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

Buildings 20-30 years
Plant, machinery and 3-10 years
equipment
Leasehold improvements 5 years or the
lease period,
if shorter
Office furniture, fixtures 3-5 years
and fittings
Computer equipment 3-5 years
Office equipment 3-5 years
Motor vehicles 3-10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are
determined by comparing proceeds with
carrying amount and are recognised within
other gains, net in the consolidated income
statement.

Land use rights

The upfront prepayments made for land
use rights are expensed in the income
statement on a straight line basis over the
period of the operating lease or when there
is impairment, it is recognised immediately.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B F iR =M E

2.

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(f)

(9)

Impairment of investments in
subsidiaries and non-financial assets
Assets that have an indefinite useful life,
for example goodwill, are not subject
to amortisation and are at least tested
annually for impairment. Assets that are
subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (i.e. CGUs). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each
balance sheet date.

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership are retained
by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Receipts or payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives
paid to lessees or received from the lessor)
are recognised as income or expenses in
the consolidated income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the
lease.

When assets are leased out under an
operating lease, the asset is included in the
balance sheet based on the nature of the
asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(h)

i)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. For the segment
of trading of pipes and fittings, cost is
calculated on the first-in, first-out (“FIFO”)
method. For the segment of manufacturing
and sale of seamless steel pipes, cost is
determined on a weighted average basis
and, in the case of work in progress and
finished goods, cost comprises direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. A provision for impairment of
trade and other receivables is established
when there is objective evidence that
the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original
terms of receivables. Significant financial
difficulties of the debtor, probability that
the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation, and default or delinquency
in payments are considered indicators
that the trade receivable is impaired. The
amount of the provision is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the
assets is reduced through the use of an
allowance account, and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the income statement.
When trade and other receivables are
uncollectible, they are written off against
the allowance account for receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to the
income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MR RO

Basis of preparation and accounting

policies (cont’d)

1)

(k)

()

(m)

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in
hand and deposits held at call with banks.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Trade payables

Trade payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at
amortised cost; any difference between
the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in
the income statement over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after
the balance sheet date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(n) Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

Employee leaves

Employee entitlements to annual
leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is
made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the
balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick
leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus
payments are recognised as a liability
when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result
of services rendered by employees
and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made.

Liabilities for bonus plans are
expected to be settled within twelve
months and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when
they are settled.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(n) Employee benefits (cont’d)

(i)

Pension obligations

Following the adoption of the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”)
Scheme in December 2000, all
employees of the Group employed in
Hong Kong joined the MPF Scheme.
Under this scheme, employees
and the Group are required to
make contributions to the scheme
calculated at 5% of the individual
employee’s monthly salaries, subject
to a cap of HK$1,000. The Group’s
contributions to this scheme are
expensed when they are due. The
assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds.

The Group’s employees in the
People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) are covered by various
government sponsored pension
plans. These government agencies
are responsible for the pension
liabilities to these employees. The
relevant group companies pay
monthly contributions to these
pension plans based on certain
percentages of the salaries, subject to
a certain ceiling.

Under these plans, the Group has
no legal or constructive obligation
to make further payments once the
required contributions have been
paid. Contributions to these plans are
expensed as incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(n) Employee benefits (cont’d)

(iv)

Share-based payment

The Group operates equity-settled
share-based compensation plan,
under which the entity receives
services from employees as
considerations for equity instruments
(options) of the Group. The fair value
of the employee services received
in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed
is determined by reference to the
fair value of the options granted,
excluding the impact of any non-
market service and performance
vesting conditions. Non-market
vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of
options that are expected to vest. The
total expense is recognised over the
vesting period, which is the period
over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. At
each balance sheet date, the entity
revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected to vest
based on the non-market vesting
conditions. It recognises the impact
of the revision of original estimates, if
any, in the income statement with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any
directly attributable transaction costs
are credited to share capital (nominal
value) and share premium when the
options are exercised.

M RERME

2. WEBEREHEGE)

n) EEER (F)

()

KR BERZ T

REBHETIHRAGE ARD N
Bevatdl - SRR B IRERISIER
WERA S BB AT A (BAHE) R
B - EERHRGAREEREN R
RBETERARFAX - JIER MR
T D2REREBERENAAE
EET - TERENBRRSE NIRRT
HZEMIZRBIRITNTE - JEMSE
BiretERRRESEBRERE
A HRRA - ABF TR BN
A BEBHREREMAR BB
B HEE  REEERERA
AREBEGSRENIEMISHEEIRIHENR
HtstAfR BB ERERE &
HRERMGFBFHEE(WE) AR

W R AR - ARSI AVER RS
B’ o

RIBIRREITIERS - FTS SRR AR
RBRAFT AR (E{E) B

—ZT——FF3% Annual Report 2011



78

Notes to the Financial Statements
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2.

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(0)

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised
in the consolidated income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantially enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on
the basis of amounts expected to be paid
to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised
using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income
tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates and laws
that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the balance sheet date and
are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the

deferred income tax liability is settled.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(0)

(9)

Current and deferred income tax
(cont’d)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on
temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, except where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the temporary difference

will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities

legally
enforceable right to offset current tax

are offset when there is a
assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the
Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation, and the
amount has been reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured at the present
value of the expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.
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2.

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(a)

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for
the sale of goods and services, net of
value-added tax, rebates, returns and
discounts and after eliminating sales within
the Group. The Group recognises revenue
when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured, it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity and
when specific criteria have been met for
each of the Group’s activities as described

below.

(i) Sales of goods are recognised when
goods are delivered to customers, the
customer has accepted the products
and collectibility of the related
receivables is reasonably assured.

(i) Interest income is recognised on

a time-proportion basis using the

effective interest method.

(i)  Dividend
when the right to receive payment is

income is recognised

established.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. Financial risk management

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety
of financial risks: market risk (including
currency risk and interest rate risk), credit
and counterparty risk and liquidity risk.
The Group’s financial risk management
focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance by actively managing debt
level and cash flow in order to maintain a
strong financial position and minimising
refinancing and liquidity risks by attaining
healthy debt
appropriate maturity profile and availability

repayment capacity,

of banking facilities. The Group adheres to
a policy of financial prudence and did not
use any structured financial products during
the year.

(@  Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates principally

in Hong Kong and in Mainland

China and is exposed to foreign

exchange risk arising from
various Ccurrency exposures,
primarily with respect to the
United States dollars (“USD”),
Renminbi (“RMB”) and Euro.
Foreign exchange risk mainly
arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities, which are
denominated in a currency that
is not the functional currency
of the entities of the Group. In
order to mitigate the foreign
currency risk, the Group has
been closely monitoring its
foreign currency exposure and
requirements and will arrange
for any hedging facilities if
necessary.
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3. Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)
(@  Market risk (cont’d)

U)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (cont’d)
As HKD is pegged against

USD, the Group is exposed
to limited exchange rate
fluctuation. As a result, the
exchange rate risk exposure
in respect of USD is not
significant. While for RMB
and Euro, the exchange rate
fluctuation is relatively volatile.
At 31st December 2011, if RMB
had strengthened/weakened
by 5% (2010: 5%) against HKD
with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit would
have been HK$1,109,000
higher/lower (2010: post-tax
loss of HK$217,000 lower/
higher) respectively mainly as
a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of
RMB-denominated financial
assets and liabilities.

Interest rate risk

Other than bank balances and
deposits (the “Interest Bearing
Assets”) specified in Note 21
and 22, the Group has no other
significant interest-bearing
assets as at 31st December
2011.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)
(@  Market risk (cont’d)

(i)

Interest rate risk (cont’d)

The Group’s interest rate risk
arises from borrowings (the
“Interest Bearing Liabilities”) as
set out in Note 25. Borrowings
issued at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk. Borrowings issued at
fixed rates expose the Group to
fair value interest rate risk. The
Group also analyses its interest
rate exposure periodically
by considering refinancing,
renewal of existing positions
and alternative financing.
As at 31st December 2011,
the Group’s Interest Bearing
Liabilities issued at variable
rates include bank borrowings
of HK$69,925,000 (2010:
HK$174,042,000).
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3.

Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.1

Financial risk factors (cont’d)
Market risk (cont’d)

@)

(i)

Interest rate risk (cont’d)

At 31st December 2011, with all
other variables held constant, if
the interest rate on HK dollar-
denominated borrowings at
variable interest rate, bank
balances and deposits had
increased/decreased by 10
basis points (2010:10 basis
points), the corresponding
decrease/increase in net
finance costs (representing
interest income on the Interest
Bearing Assets less interest
expenses on Interest Bearing
Liabilities) would have resulted
in an increase/decrease in the
Group’s profit after taxation
by HK$76,000 (2010:the
corresponding decrease/
increase in net finance costs
would have resulted in a
decrease/increase in the
Group’s loss after taxation by
HK$99,000). At 31st December
2011, if the interest rate on
RMB-denominated bank
balances and deposits had
increased/decreased by 75
basis points, the corresponding
decrease/increase in net finance
costs would have resulted in
an increase/decrease in the
Group’s profit after taxation
by HK$183,000 (2010: if
the interest rate on RMB-
denominated borrowings at
variable interest rate, bank
balances and deposits had
increased/decreased by 75
basis points, the corresponding
increase/decrease in net finance
costs would have resulted in
an increase/decrease in the
Group’s loss after taxation by
HK$403,000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)

@

(b)

Market risk (cont’d)
(i)  Interest rate risk (cont’d)

The Group has not used any
interest rate swap to hedge its
exposure to interest rate risk.

Credit and counterparty risk

Credit risk mainly arises from bank
deposits and trade and other
receivables. The carrying amounts of
these balances substantially represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit and counterparty risk in relation
to financial assets.

As at 31st December 2010 and 2011,
all the bank deposits are deposited
in high quality financial institutions
without  significant credit risk. The
credit risk on bank deposits is limited
because over 80% of the Group’s
bank balances are placed with
subsidiaries of state-owned banks
and others are placed with reputable
financial institutions. Management
does not expect any loss from non-

performance of these banks.
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3.

Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.1

Financial risk factors (cont’d)

(b)

(©

Credit and counterparty risk (cont’d)
In order to minimise the credit risk,
the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue
trade and other receivables. In
addition, the Group reviews regularly
the recoverable amount of each
individual trade and other receivables
to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced. The Group has no
significant concentration of credit risk,
with exposure spread over a number
of counterparties and customers.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management
includes maintaining sufficient cash
and availability of funding from an
adequate amount of credit facilities.
Management maintains rolling
forecast of the Group’s liquidity
reserves which comprises undrawn
banking facilities and cash and cash
equivalents, on the basis of expected
cash flows.

The table below analyses the Group’s
financial liabilities that will be settled
into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at
the balance sheet to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.
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3.

Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.1

Financial risk factors (cont’d)

(©

Liquidity risk (cont’d)

At 31st December R-Z——%
2011 +ZB=+—H

Group 350

Trade and other B 5 REAM
payables B3R

Amount due to a B —R &
related company UNGIE Q%]

Borrowings £

Interest payments on  fEE 2 Fl8 2+
borrowings (note (i) (Fff&E ()

Company b X/

Other payables HAERF0E

Amounts due to LNENG
subsidiaries I

At31stDecember ~ RZZE—ZTF
2010 TZA=+-H

Group AEE

Trade and other B o REAM
payables R 5RIE

Amount due to a [ —R &
related company ARlFUR

Amount due to a B —h3E
non-controlling PR R
shareholder A

Borrowings T

Interest payments on
borrowings (note (i)

Financial guarantee
contract (note (ii))

Company

Other payables

Amounts due to
subsidiaries

)
PIERAR
(PEE (i)

Hit N5
iRl YNG
HR

Notes to the Financial Statements

M RERME

3. MEERREEGR)

3.1

©

s b & ()
BB (F)

Less than
1 year
—ElUR
HK$°000
TET

54,725

876
69,925

391

Between 1
and 2 years
—FEREF
HK$’000
THET

Between 2
and 5 years
MEELF
HK$’000
TET

Over 5 years
AENE
HK$’000

THET

6,758

90,253

142,837

876

17

174,042

4,750

21,939

8,148

99,978
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3.

Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.1

Financial risk factors (cont’d)
(c)  Liquidity risk (cont’d)
Notes:

(i) The interest payments on
borrowings are calculated on the
respective amounts held as at 31st
December 2010 and 2011 without
taking into account of any future
change in market interest rate.
Floating-rate interest is estimated
using applicable interest rates at
31st December 2010 and 2011
respectively.

(i) The amount represents the
maximum exposure of cash outflow
under the financial guarantee
contract.

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or
sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the
Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total
debt divided by total equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.2

3.3

Capital risk management (cont’d)

The Group’s strategy was to maintain a
solid capital base to support the operations
and development of its business in the long
term. Given its existing principal business,
management considers a gearing ratio as
measured by total debt to total equity of not
more than 50% as solid and reasonable.
The table below analyses the Group’s
capital structure at 31st December 2010
and 2011 as follows:

Total debts BEE

Total equity 1@

BERAFELLE

Gearing ratio

Fair value estimation

The carrying value less impairment
provision of trade and other receivables,
trade and other payables, amount due to a
related company and amount due to a non-
controlling shareholder are a reasonable
approximation of their fair values. The fair
value of financial liabilities for disclosure
purposes is estimated by discounting the
future contractual cash flows at the current
market interest rate that is available to the
Group for similar financial instruments.
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Critical accounting estimates and
judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities of the Group are
discussed below.

(@) Provision for impairment of trade and

other receivables

The policy for provision for impairment of
trade and other receivables of the Group
is based on the evaluation of collectability
and on management’s judgement. A
considerable amount of judgement
is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, including
the current creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each customer. If
the financial conditions of customers of
the Group were to deteriorate, resulting
in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional allowances may be
required.

(b) Provision for inventories

The management of the Group reviews
the marketability of inventory items at each
balance sheet date, and makes allowance
for obsolete and slow-moving inventory
items identified that are no longer suitable
for sale. The management estimates the
net realisable value for inventories based
primarily on the latest invoice prices and
current market conditions. The Group
carries out an inventory review on a
product-by-product basis at each balance
sheet date and makes provision for
obsolete items.
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4. Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (cont’d)

(c)

(d)

Provision for bonus and customer
claims

Management reviews the provision for
bonus and customer claims at each
balance sheet date to determine whether
is adequate based on
experience and most reliable

the provision
historical
estimates. Significant judgement is required
in determining the provision for bonus and
customer claims.

Employee benefits — share based
payments

The determination of the fair value of the
share options granted requires estimates
in determining the expected volatility of
the share price, the dividends expected
on the shares, the risk-free interest rate
for the life of the option and the number of
share options that are expected to become
exercisable as stated in Note 8. Where the
outcome of the number of options that are
exercisable is different, such difference will
impact the consolidated income statement
in the subsequent remaining vesting period
of the relevant share options.
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Segment information

The Group determines its operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the Board
of Directors that are used to make strategic
decisions. The Board of Directors assesses the
performance of the operating segments based
on a measure of profit/(loss) attributable to equity
holders of the Company.

During the year, the Group has two reportable
segments, which are trading of pipes and fittings
and manufacturing and sale of seamless steel
pipes. The segments are managed separately
as each business offers different products and
services.

Trading of pipes and fittings includes wholesale,
retail and logistics operations in Hong Kong and
Macau.

Manufacturing and sale of seamless steel pipes
segment is mainly contributed by a subsidiary
of the Group, Kiyofo, which manufactures
and sells seamless steel pipes in Mainland
China. Kiyofo and its holding companies were
disposed of during the year and constituted the
discontinued operation of the Group. Details of
the discontinued operation are set out in Note
11(a).

As at 31st December 2010, the Group had
disposed of all investment properties, the results
related to investment properties were presented
under discontinued operation. Details of the
discontinued operation were set out in Note
11(b).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Segment information (cont’d)

The segment information for the year ended 31st
December 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

Revenue

Operating profit

Interest income
Interest expense

Profit/(loss) before income tax
Tax expense

Profit/(loss) for the year
Non-controlling interests

Profit/(loss) before corporate
overhead attributable to equity
holders of the Company

Operating profit includes:
Depreciation and amortisation
Provision for impairment of trade
and other receivables, net
Write-back of provision for
impairment of inventories, net

Capital expenditure
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A EUA
MBS H

BEDER,(&B1R)
BIE

FEEN,(BR)
SR liLr Fo

NAE B2 ARE]

PR B AFEMR
A, (E518)

SR M EBE
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BB R
TFERE D5

R
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For the year ended 31st December 2011
BE_2—F+_A=+—HLEE

Reportable segments

ATFPERHSNE
Continuing  Discontinued
operation operation
FIREERYE RLBERY
Trading of Total
pipes and Seamless reportable
fittings steel pipes segments
BRER ATFEHR
EHHS \mEENE pog ot
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FHT F#ExT F#&RT
438,395 64,512 502,907
37,466 979 38,445
438 129 567
(1,340) (2,825) (4,165)
36,564 (1,717) 34,847
(2,791) - (2,791)
33,773 (1,717) 32,056
- 555 555
33,773 (1,162) 32,611
1,808 318 2,126
710 - 710
3,093 - 3,093
870 15 885
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5.

Segment information (cont’d)

Revenue

Operating profit/(oss)

Interest income
Interest expense

Profit/{loss) before income tax
Tax (expense)/creqt

Profit/{loss) for the year
Non-controling interests

Profit/{loss) before corporate
overhead attributable to equity
holders of the Company

QOperating profit/{loss) includes:
Depreciation and amortisation
Provision for impairment of trade

and other receivables, net
Write-back of provision for

impairment of inventories, net
Impairment loss on fand use rights
Impairment loss on property,

plant and equipment
Impairment loss on goodwil

Capital expenditure

HanER/ (B8)
R () /5%

FRER/(BR)
AL

RARRH AR
RSB AL
i/ (BR)

B REAMENK
LHEREAE
FEBEDR

#8
HERECHERR
Nz BERE
LHERR
BEHERE

ARFX
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For the year ended 31st December 2010
HECT-EET-A=T-ALER
Reportable segments
ATRBHHR
Continuing operation Discontinued operations
RESESH RIF2ERE
Trading of Inter- Inter- Total
pipes and Segment Seamless  Investment Segment reportable
fittings revenue  Sub-total  steelpipes  properties revenue  Sub-total  segments
BER BEAER EENER EFER
it WA Nt BEE REME WA Nt HRES
HK$000  HK$000  HK$O000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000
T T T T T T ThxL T
452,299 (67,154) 385,145 131,334 1,902 (386) 132860 517,995
21,194 386 21580 (137,506) (24,293 (386) (162,185  (140,605)
21 - il 91 2 - 93 304
(2,736) - (2,736) (7,220) (3,064) - (10,274) (18,010)
18,669 386 19,085  (144,639) (27,348) (386)  (172366)  (163,311)
(3434) - (3434) 9,072 29 - 9,101 5,667
16,235 386 16,621 (135,563) (27,316) (386) (163265  (147,644)
- - - 44314 - - 44314 44314
16,235 386 16,621 (91,249 (27,316) (386)  (118961)  (103,330)
1,988 = 1,988 9,864 692 = 10,566 12,544
5,860 - 5,866 20 - - 20 5,886
4736 - 4736 - - - - 4736
- - - 2471 - - 2471 2471
- - - 98900 - - 98,900 98,900
- - - 23,050 - - 23,050 23,050
1,226 - 1,226 1,591 9 = 1,600 2,826




Notes to the Financial Statements
MR =M E

5. Segment information (cont’d) 5. SEEHEE)
Restated
KE
2011 2010
—=—% ZE-TF
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
BteE THT FHTT
Reconciliation of profit/(loss) before /A &1 E AR AN A &) f&E
corporate overhead attributable to A ARG, (&8)
the equity holders of the Company Rtk BT $RR
and discontinued operations
Continuing operation: BB -
Profit before corporate overhead NGIE-§2h:TIpd==¢"]
for reportable segments pak Vv 33,773 15,621
Administrative expenses (note) T EA (FisE) (20,771) (27,345)
Depreciation e (64) (17)
Interest income FEHA 34 3
Interest expense FEZH (99) (4,927)
12,873 (16,665)
Discontinued operations: A EERTE
Seamless steel pipes UL E (1,162) (91,249)
Investment properties HEYZE - (27,702)
After-tax gain on disposal HEHRE AT
of subsidiaries Weas (Fifg ) 11(a) & (b) 1,569 12,847
407 (106,104)
Profit/(loss) attributable to the RARIREREA
equity holders of the Company FEfRs= 5 (E518) 13,280 (122,769)

ZEREERRDARARIAZESFNEAM
EBHNITHRER -

Note: The amounts mainly represent administrative
expenses at corporate level and other
businesses not categorised as operating
segments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MR RO

5. Segment information (cont’d) 5.

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31st
December 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

STEHGR)

RZE——FR - ZFF+_A=+—Hz%&
BLOBEENBENOT

Reportable
segment
RATFEH
HaE
Trading of Corporate
pipes and and others
fittings (note) Total
HBER LFREAM
EHRS (P&E) e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TFHT FET F#&RT
As at 31st December 2011 n-—E—=%F
+=A=+—H
Assets BE 410,060 12,928 422,988
Liabilities af8 118,628 6,903 125,531
Reportable segments
ATEHRNNE
Trading of Total Corporate
pipes and Seamless reportable and others
fittings steel pipes segments (note) Total
BER AYER  RukEf
EMES BT gk (FitzE) Lt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT THT THL TAT THT
Asat 31stDecember 2010 ~ R=E-FF+-f=1—H
Assets BE 402,843 181,195 584,038 14,317 598,355
Liabilities B 132,882 181,195 314,077 8,985 323,062
Note: The balances represent assets and liabilities MiaE : ZEBRRABRKRINAGES BHEAMER

at corporate level and other businesses not
categorised as operating segments, which
principally include cash and cash equivalents and

accrued expenses.

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&EHERAR
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR =M E

Segment information (cont’d)

Geographical information

The Group’s revenue from external customers by
geographical location are detailed below:

Continuing operation:
Hong Kong
Mainland China
Others

Discontinued operations:
Mainland China
Seamless steel pipes
Investment properties
Hong Kong
Investment properties

AR EERT -
5
Bl
Hity

AU EERT -
PEIR
BEAEHE
REM=
N0
BREME

o

STEHGR)

AEERIE D BHREINRELHBANT

Revenue

A
Restated
KE
2011 2010
—E——3F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
427,729 378,050
1,084 2,406
9,582 4,689
438,395 385,145
64,512 131,334
- 1,338
- 178
64,512 132,850
502,907 517,995
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5. Segment information (cont’d) 5. SEEHE(E)
Geographical information (cont’d) WESEER (&)
The Group’s non-current assets (excluding REBIRWER D IENIERESEE (TR E
financial assets and deferred tax assets) by ERREHEEE)WAT

geographical location are detailed below:

2011 2010

—Z=—¢f —E-TF

HK$’000 HK$’000

T#T FAT

Hong Kong BB 1,585 2,576
Mainland China R B A, 3,711 35,974
Others Hip - 21
5,296 38,571

6. Other gains, net 6. HMkSIRH

Restated

LT

2011 2010

—E2——%F —E-TF

HK$’000 HK$’000

THT FABT

Write-back of trade payables = ANE/NEE 6,192 =
Provision for customer claim HEmERE (3,694) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB ARz WEs 832 =
Net exchange gains b W a F R 2,222 562

Net loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BEK

plant and equipment Rl 2 BBFRE (110) (54)
5,442 508
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Expenses by nature

Notes to the Financial Statements
MR =M E

7.

Operating profit/(loss) is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

Cost of inventories sold
Auditor’s remuneration
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Employee benefit expenses
(including directors’
emoluments (Note 8))
Operating lease on land
and buildings
Provision for impairment of trade
and other receivables, net
Write-back of provision for
impairment of inventories, net
Other expenses

Representing:

Cost of sales

Selling and distribution costs

General and administrative
expenses

BEHEZFERA
- Glln
WE - BERREITE

BTRMAX (81
=M= (M5Es))

THREFREEDN

85 M E M EIKIR
RER R
TFEREEBH R

H AR

(A
HEMRA

$HE K7 HAK AR
—REITHER

PAZHHE

eegad (B1R) ik, (GEA) THIEE &

Restated
e
2011 2010
—2——% —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
325,931 288,718
1,330 1,458
1,872 2,005
56,652 51,412
16,264 15,865
710 5,866
(3,093) (4,736)
27,540 30,847
427,206 391,435
330,014 293,197
13,604 9,621
83,588 88,617
427,206 391,435
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8. Employee benefit expenses 8. REREFAX(BREFE#ML)
(including directors’ emoluments)
Restated
K5
2011 2010
—2——% —T-FF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FAT
Wages and salaries TENES 53,264 44,808
Pension costs — defined RIS A — E R RG]
contribution plans 1,599 1,500
Share based payment (note) LARSAD B EERE 2 3R (BT 5E) 1,789 5,104
56,652 51,412
Note: BdaE :
Details of share options are as follows: BARESFIENT
Number of share options
HBENE
st st
Exercise Price  1st January Granted and December Granted and December
Grantor Date of grant HK$ 2010  accepted  Exercised Lapsed 2010  accepted  Exercised Lapsed 2011
3% - 3
fifR -%3-3% 2t +2A 2t +ZA
HHA BiHAKY #rt -A-H b2 2ghid E%% =t+-A bt BTl E%% =t+-A
The Company  3rd December 2009 0071 592,000,000 - - (36,400,000) 555,600,000 - - (210,600,000) 345,000,000
YN ZTENFTZA=A
The Company ~ 5th May 2010 0.083 - 16,000,000 = - 16,000,000 - - - 16,000,000
ARd “Z-ZERARA
The Company ~ 8th June 2011 00392 - - - - - 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
YN —E——E5ANR
Total &5 592,000,000 16,000,000 - (36,400,000) 571,600,000 | 10,000,000 - (210,600,000) 371,000,000

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&EHERAR




Notes to the Financial Statements

Employee benefit expenses
(including directors’ emoluments)
(cont’d)

Note: (cont’d)

The share options are divided into 3 tranches with
exercise price of HK$0.071, HK$0.083 and HK$0.0392
and have option period from 3rd December 2009 to
2nd December 2019 (both days inclusive), 5th May
2010 to 4th May 2020 (both days inclusive) and 8th
June 2011 to 7th June 2021 (both days inclusive)
respectively. Details for the exercisable period is shown
in Note 23.

The estimated fair value of share options granted is
based on the Binomial model. The significant inputs into
the models are as follows:

M RERME

EREFAZ (BBEEFEHE)GE)

BeE - (&)

BERSAE D BIIRTTE (8 0.071 7 7T ~ 0.083 7 7T 2 0.0392
B =R - ZEERESRE SR AR_STAF
+-_AZHE_T—hEF+_A_H(8BEEHEMA)
H-_Z-ZTFRARBAE_Z_ZTFRANA(BEE
EMB)MBE-Z—FNA/\BE-_Z-—F At
A(BPEEEMA) - (THEARFFBERME235E -

ERHBRENGT AR EERE -AXNGERNG
"o WAREXNTIZ2800T :

The Company EANF

Date of grant B
Exercise price T{EE
Expected volatility T8 BARR (B R 18
Option life FEIREFH

Annual risk free interest rate
Dividend yield

Fair value

FEEE R =

ERE

RAEE

8th June 2011 5th May 2010
—2——%AANA —F-FFRARA
HK$0.0392 HK$0.083

49% 55%

10 years 10 years

105 104F

2.255% 2.86%

2.75% 3.10%

HK$0.014 ~ HK$0.016 HK$0.026 ~ HK$0.038

The expected volatility measured at the standard
deviation is based on the historical data of the weekly
share price movement of comparable companies of the
Company.

RIFEEGE 2 RERIE D ER AR R Z AT A R &R
B ER BB RO R L 8% -
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101



Notes to the Financial Statements

MR RO

8. Employee benefit expenses
(including directors’ emoluments)
(cont’d)

(@) Directors’ emoluments
The remuneration of each Director for the
year ended 31st December 2011 and 2010
is set out below:

EREFAZ (BEEEHE)GE)

(@) EE=ME

EEFNBE-E——FR-F-TF
+= A=t B EEAME T

For the year ended 31st December 2011
BE_E—F+ZA=t+-HILEE

Group’s
Salaries contributions
and other Discretionary to retirement Share based
Fees benefits bonus scheme  payments Total
FEEY
HeR Bl DRRA
e  HiEH B8R <HH  ERMAR #3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TF#L T#L TR TET TR
Lai Guanglin (note (i) Lai Guanglin (¥ () 2,090 - 1,177 - - 3,267
Yu Ben Ansheng (note (i) B (FEE () - 2,090 417 12 - 2,519
Lai Fulin (note (i) FRAREA (P2 (i) - 1,405 395 12 344 2,156
U Kean Seng REM 200 - - - 206 406
Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson B 200 - - - 69 269
Chen Wei Wen (note (i) BRI (MiE () 150 - - - 104 254
Yang Li (note(v) 1l (PRRE (V) 142 - - - 56 198
Zhao Yue (note (vi) B (W) - - - -
Wu Xiuru (note (vi) RAH (I3 (i) - - - -
Zia Samuel (note (vii) A (P 2E (vi) - - - -
Sam Ming Choy (note (vii) Sam Ming Choy
(P =E (vi) - | - 46 75 1,032
2,803 4,406 2,049 70 854 10,182
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR =M E

Employee benefit expenses 8. EEEINX(BEEEMS) @)
(including directors’ emoluments)
(cont’d)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (cont’d) (@) E=M< (&)
For the year ended 31st December 2010
HE_T-TE+_A-t-BLEE
Group’s
Salaries contributions
and other  Discretionary toretirement  Share based
Fees benefits bonus scheme payments Total
TEEY
Fek BiRiTE DRGDA
#e  HibEN  BERL i ERONR Lk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT THT THL TET THT
Lai Guanglin (note (i) Lai Guanglin (FiE () 2,000 - - - - 2,000
Yu Ben Ansheng (note (i) A (MR () - 2,000 53 12 - 2,065
Lai Fulin (note (i) FRARIEA (P2 (i) - 1,000 o4 12 658 1,764
U Kean Seng REM 200 - - - 395 595
Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson BUE 200 - - - 132 332
Chen Wei Wen (note (iv)) R (FitE (v) 104 - - - 133 237
Zhao Yue (note (vi) (P () 100 - - - 104 204
Wu Xiuru (note (vi) RAH (WEE W) 150 - - - 34 184
Zia Samuel (note (vii) A (B (i) 67 - - - - 67
Sam Ming Choy (note (vii)) ~ Sam Ming Choy (B3 (vii)) - 1,495 17 76 658 2,246
Lau Kwok Ting (note (i) 2IEE (M3 () 60 - - - 34 94
Cai Shangwu (note (x) ZE (i K) 15 - - - - 15
2,896 4,49 164 100 2,148 9,803
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8. Employee benefit expenses 8.

(including directors’ emoluments)
(cont’d)

(@) Directors’ emoluments (cont’d)
Notes:

(i) Re-designated from non-executive director
to executive director with effect from 14th
March 2012. The director's fee will be
increased to HK$3,204,000 per annum
with effect from 1st April 2012.

(ii) The director’s salary will be increased to
HK$2,250,000 per annum with effect from
1st April 2012.

(iii) The director’s salary will be increased to
HK$1,464,000 per annum with effect from
1st April 2012,

(iv)  Appointed on 21st April 2010.

(V) Appointed on 20th January 2011. With
effect from 1st January 2012, the director
fee was increased to HK$200,000 per
annum.

(vi) Resigned on 20th January 2011.

(Vi) Appointed on 21st July 2010 and resigned
on 20th January 2011.

(viii)  Resigned on 20th August 2011.
(ix)  Retired on 26th May 2010.

(%) Resigned on 1st May 2010.

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEZ£EERAF

EREFAZ (BEEEHE)GE)

(a)

EEME (8

BT -

U

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil

(ix)

R-E-——F=A+0HA BFERTES
HAERNTEE -BEFHSHEEEF
3,204,000 BT ——_FMA—H
REAERY

BEF B EFE2,250,000/87T 0 B
—ET-—FA—BEEK -

BEHEBIEEFTF1,464,0008 T B
T —FA—HEBER -

RoZE—ZFNA -+ —HEERE-
W_E——F—A-+REZF-B-%

——F-A—HE EFADENES
200,000/87T °

N_E——F— A _+HBHIE-
N_ZE—TF+A-+—BEZEIMAZ
T——F—H=+HBHE -

RZZB——FN\A-+HEHE -



8.

Employee benefit expenses
(including directors’ emoluments)
(cont’d)

Notes to the Financial Statements

8.

(a

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (cont’d)
The emoluments of the directors fell within
the following bands:

Nil-HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments
were the highest in the Group for the year
include three (2010: four) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented above. The emoluments paid
to the two (2010: one) individuals in 2011
were as follows:

Salaries and other short-term
employee benefits

Discretionary bonus EISTEAL

Pension costs — defined
contribution plans

Share based payments

M RERME

EREFAZ (BBEEFEHE)GE)

(a)

££—1,000,0007% 7T
1,000,001 7T — 1,500,000 5 7T 1
1,500,001 /875 —2,000,000 % 7T -
2,000,001 7T —2,500,000 77T
2,500,001 77t — 3,000,000 % 7T
3,000,001 7T — 3,500,000 7 7T

(b)

e MEMEEEE RN

BASRAN - ERHE KRGS

PARSCAD 23 ERE A0 3K

E=MeE (&)
EEMENTFIATHAR

2011 2010
—E—4% —T T4
7 8

2

1 2

1 _

1 _

11 12

EfUGRSHFAL

REAR AEBAUKSHFALBRRE =M
“E-TF O ES EFeCRE
XE2INNDITRR - R-F——FR " X

MHFML(ZF—FF: ) ALZBE
LU

2011 2010
—2—F —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TH#T FHAET
2,949 1,495
1,017 115

102 75

831 1,190

4,899 2,875
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8. Employee benefit expenses 8. REREFMAX(BREFE#ML)(HE)
(including directors’ emoluments)
(cont’d)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (cont’d) (b) FHfuE=EHFH AL (HE)
The emoluments of the two (2010: one) MBE(ZE—ZTF: —Z)mRasg ALZH
individuals fell within the following bands: AR5 EE -
2011 2010
—2——F —TFF
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 /&t — 2,500,000 /& T 1 -
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 /&7t — 3,000,000 /& 7T 1 1
2 1
9. Finance costs, net 9. M¥BEHRBH
Restated
KB
2011 2010
—2——% —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FET
Bank interest income SRITH B WA 472) (214)
Interest expense on loan AR E A E X
from a shareholder 99 4,927
Interest expense on bank borrowings 7B AFERNBHERE 2
wholly repayable within five years BITEE A BT H 1,340 2,736
967 7,449

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEZ£EERAF
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Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the
rate of 16.5% (2010: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profit for the year. Taxation on
overseas profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at the
rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

M RERME

10. Tax expense 10. MIAXH
Restated
s B
2011 2010
—Z=—¢f —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T FAT
Current taxation: BNERTRIE :
Hong Kong profits tax EBEH 2,652 1,229
Overseas tax INEIR 230 45
Over-provision in prior years AT E %12 (31) (98)
Total current tax BNHAH IH 4B K8 2,851 1,176
Deferred taxation (Note 26): EERIA (FizE26)
Origination and reversal of B ER 2 E A R
temporary differences (60) 2,258
Tax expense MBS 2,791 3,434

EBFSTHAF NG ERF R FIRHE16.5%
ZZ—FF 1 16.5%) 5TIE « BINHIBIIRIE S
N2 T ERB R IR ASELEXBER 2B
I EETE -
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10. Tax expense (cont’d) 10. RIAZH (§8)
The tax on the Group’s profit/(loss) before income REFEBB@HATEMN,(EE) 2 5B B EE
tax differs from the theoretical amount that would EERBEANGSHEME 2B mTiaE 2 =50
arise using the Hong Kong profits tax rate as T
follows:
Restated
s B
2011 2010
—z—% —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
T#T FAT
Profit/(loss) before income tax BAnEF(E8) 15,664 (13,231)
Tax calculated at tax rate of #216.5% (ZZ—ZF : 16.5%)
16.5% (2010: 16.5%) MEEE 2 HIA 2,584 (2,183)
Effect of different tax rates HiBERT R R 2 f 2
in other countries (336) (282)
Utilisation of previously 152 F SE AR TR 2 T IR B 18
unrecognised tax loss (829) (13)
Unrecognised tax losses RERTIAEE 708 2,906
Tax effect of income not AR WA Z TIa R &
subject to taxation (504) (170)
Tax effect of expenses not NAHIR 2 S 2 B Ta s &
deductible for taxation purposes 1,199 3,233
Reversal of deferred tax B0l 2 IS B RIRIER IR
recognised in prior years - 41
Over-provision of current tax ZRIFE SRR IR
in prior years (31) (98)
Tax expense HIEZ 2,791 3,434
For the year ended 31st December 2011, the HE_T——F+_HA=T—HILFE - ¥
weighted average applicable tax rate was 14.4% B EARRE14.4%(ZF—FF : 18.6%) °

(2010:18.6%).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

11. Discontinued operations

(a)

Seamless steel pipes

In May 2011, the Group completed the
disposal of the entire equity interest in
Merchant Capital Limited, which was
engaged in manufacturing and sale of
seamless steel pipes business in Mainland
China through its indirect 60% equity
interest owned subsidiary, Kiyofo. For
the year ended 31st December 2011,
the financial results of the discontinued
operation for the period up to the
completion of the disposal has been
consolidated.

The results and cash flows of the

discontinued operation included in the
consolidated income statement and the
consolidated statement of cash flows are

as follows:

M RERME

11. BIEEEER

(@)

EAWE

R-ZZB——FHA AEBETKHERER
BERAREHMBEAED - ZAREBEH
ERB0%B AR ZMBARSHER
PEAMLEEEEMHEBENE X -
HE-_ZT——F+-A=T—HLFE"
RIFLSBEHBEHETKIEREZWB
RBECHREAAR -

RIEEERBNEERRSREBERE
BREREGERERER W1 :
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11.

Discontinued operations (cont’d)

(a)

Seamless steel pipes (cont’d)

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit/(loss)
Impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment
Impairment loss on land
use rights
Impairment loss on goodwill
Other (loss)/gain
Selling and distribution costs
General and administrative
expenses

Operating profit/(loss)
Finance costs, net

Loss before income tax
Tax credit

Loss after tax from
discontinued operation

Pre-tax gain on disposal
of subsidiaries
Tax expense

After-tax gain on disposal
of subsidiaries

Loss for the period/year from
discontinued operation

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&EHERAR

1. BILEERY (])

(@) EmAME (F)

WA
HERAR

EF/(B18)

ME  BEREREZ
BB EE

THbfFEREL
BIEREE

BB RERR

Hih (B518), e

$HE K AR

—REITHER

g r (ER)
TS ERFE

AT E 1B

HIEE R

R EEE R RIRR
&1

HEMB ARz s
(FiAn)
PBIA

mef==fi ) NIl 6o
(F12)

RIMSEXEB 2 BN,/ FE
BEE

G
ARABIRIEREA

ESEllETy Fas

2011 2010
—2—5 —ET-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FaT FHT
64,512 131,334
(60,802) (132,639)
3,710 (1,305)
- (98,900)

- 2,471)

- (23,050)

(7 44

(808) (3,186)
(1,916) (8,638)
979 (137,506)
(2,696) (7,129)
(1,717) (144,635)

- 9,072
(1,717) (135,563)
1,569 —
1,569 -
(148) (135,563)
407 (91,249)
(555) (44,314)
(148) (135,563)
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11. Discontinued operations (cont’d)

(a)

(b)

Seamless steel pipes (cont’d)

M RERME

1. BILEERY (])

(@)

Operating activities cash flows RS 2 IRBT
Investing activities cash flows WERE 2 IRE N
Financing activities cash flows BEEE RSN
Exchange differences ME 5 =58

Investment properties

The Group completed the disposal of
investment properties held in Hong Kong
in early 2010 and the disposal of the entire
equity interest in Noble Win International
Limited in December 2010 which was
engaged in
Mainland China through its subsidiaries.

investment properties in

The results and cash flows of the

discontinued operation included in the
consolidated income statement and the
consolidated statement of cash flows are

as follows:

(b)

mAgmE ()
2011 2010
—g——F | =T TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT T
(698) (16,733)
(15) (1,380)
348 18,653
174 286
(191) 826

AEER_Z-—TFFITHHEREE
FEZREME UWERR-_T—FF+—
At & REERAR QB MARAE
o ZARERENBARRNF BRI
EMERE -

RIEEEERBNEERRSRDBERE
BREREEERERER W1 :
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Investment properties (cont’d)

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Other losses

Selling and distribution costs

General and administrative
expenses

Operating loss
Finance costs, net

Loss before income tax
Tax credit

Loss after tax from
discontinued operation

Pre-tax gain on disposal
of subsidiaries
Tax expense

After-tax gain on disposal
of subsidiaries

Loss for the year from
discontinued operation

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company

Non-controlling interest

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&EHERAR

Notes to the Financial Statements
B F iR =M E

Discontinued operations (cont’d) 11. BIEEEER (\)

(b) HBEWHE(E)
2011 2010
—E——=f T —TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FETT
WA - 1,516
SHER A - =
EH - 1,516
HAungEsE - (23,182)
SHE R KA - (116)
— R R ATEE
- (2,897)
ey = - (24,679)
BT E F)H 5 - (3,052)
HiRESE - (27,731)
HIER® - 29
IR EIB TS 2 FREE
E5i8 - (27,702)
HERMB AR 2Kz
(%iR0) - 12,847
HIESZ - -
HERMB AR 2Kz
(Biz) - 12,847
RIEEBER TR
[E518 - (14,855)
FEfh
KR RIAERFB A - (14,855)
IR FI RS - =
- (14,855)
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11. Discontinued operations (cont’d) 11. BIEEEER ()
(b) Investment properties (cont’d) REWE (E)

2011 2010
—g——%| -—T-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FA&T
Operating activities cash flows KBTS 2 RS R - (9,708)
Investing activities cash flows WERE 2 IRE MR - 114,680
Financing activities cash flows MEEH 2IRER - (106,389
Exchange differences ME 5 =5 - 32
- (1,385)

12. Loss attributable to equity holders 12. BREHHE AEBESR

The loss attributable to equity holders of
the Company is dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company to the extent of
loss of approximately HK$4,418,000 (2010:
HK$182,685,000).

KRARIIEHEIRA AENEERYBHRERANERIEZ
RATEEBA A4,4180008 T (B —Z4F :
182,685,000 7T ) °
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13.

14,

Earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings/
(loss) per share is based on the profit/(loss)
attributable to equity holders and weighted
average number of shares with adjustments
where applicable as follows:

13.

sRrREH, (HR)

FRIFHESREARF (BHE) REH
BF/(BHR) TR EE RIS B A A
R/ UBIR) REBATERR 2 BT B (B
25 FIAHE)

Restated
B
2011 2010
—Zz—f —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FAT
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity BB S ERET 2 A N IR
holders of the Company from BEARGEF(EE)
continuing operation 12,873 (16,665)
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity IR EEIBETS 2 RN R IR
holders of the Company HEeAEERF(EE)
from discontinued operations 407 (106,104)
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity STEEREART(BE) 2
holders of the Company NARIRAEREB ARG
for the purpose of basic wmF (E8)
earnings/(loss) per share 13,280 (122,769)
Thousand Thousand
Number of shares Bin®A TB T
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ stE&SREAREF),(EE) 2
shares for the purpose of basic @A) 2 DA ALK
earnings/(loss) per share 13,332,700 13,332,700

The share options have no potential dilutive effect
on basic earnings/(loss) per share for 2010 and
2011.

Dividend

At the Board meeting held on 14th March 2012,
the Board does not recommend a final dividend
for the year ended 31st December 2011 (2010:
nil).

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&EHERAR

14.

—E-TER T —FBEREHERELRR

R/ (B1R) RBBEHERE -

B2

R-E-——_F=-ATMOAFTHNEFTSSH L

EFRTRARERE T

F+-—HA=+—

BIEFEZRPRE(ZT—TF : &) -
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15. Property, plant and equipment 15. ¥1% - BER®E
Group REH
Plant, Office
machinery furniture,
and  Leasehold fixtures and Officc  Computer Motor
Buildings ~ equipment  improvements fittings ~ equipment  equipment vehicles Total
HE #3 HEWR  BOERE.
B¥ kil k& REREG Y86 L1 RE 1]
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
TR Tin T Tin Tin TR Tin Tin

Cost Fi%

At 1st January 2011 W=F-—-A-A 79,510 40,965 9,780 1,441 28 1,14 5,93 145,681
Exchange differences EizE 1,235 701 3 1 5 4 7 2,066
Addtions HE - 339 86 3 2 88 8 921
Disposals ik - (209) - - - - (725) (921)
Disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEHBAT

(Note 29(o)) (Rs=2900) (80,808) (34,050) - (624) (183) (283) (239  (18294)

At3istDecember 2011 R-E——F

tZA=1-H - 7,153 9,901 868 92 7,600 3,283 29447

Accumulated depreciation ERFER
and impairment losses W {EHHE

At 1st January 2011 WZF——%-A-H 76,050 38,180 8,307 1,113 205 13 4580 185,572
Exchange differences ERZE 1,181 581 12 8 4 3 49 1,838
Charge for the year REEHE 10 454 49 87 14 461 448 1,983
Disposals HiE - (209 - - - - (500) (102)
Disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEMBAA

(Note 29(o)(i) (FzE290m) (77,301) (34,050) - (4m1) (166) (213 (2,339) (114,540)

At3tstDecomber 2011 R=F——F

+-A=1-H - 4,963 8,768 1 57 7,388 2,238 24,151
Net book value IRERE
At3tstDecomber 2011 R-F——F

+ZR=1-H - 2790 1,133 131 3 212 995 5,206

—ZT——FF3% Annual Report 2011
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15. Property, plant and equipment 15. % - BRERRE (&)
(cont’d)
Group (cont’d) REE (E)
Plant, Office
machinry fumiture,
and Leasehold ~fixtures and! (Office Computer Motor
Buloings equipment  improvements fitings equipment equipment vehicles Total
BiE #E  BEDE  PAERL
62 R 5B %ERRG bC Bl ik g

HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK$ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000
ThI TRL TRL ThI TRL TR TR TRL

Cost BE
At 1st January 2010 N-E-F5-F-H 75803 3725 9517 1,360 312 7,660 8,444 142,841
Exchngedfferences ~ EFEE 2841 1342 I % 8 8 213 4,464
Additons HE 906 219 236 5 8 8 1,555 3063
Disposals ik - (31) - - 19 - (2%) (424
Disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEMBAT
(Note 291} (B 2000m) - - - () - 0 (4.251) (4269
M3istDecember 2010 R-E-%
+=A=1-A 79570 40,965 9,780 1441 218 7741 5,936 145,681
Accumulated depreciation EEHTER
and impairment losses i {EEE
At 1st January 2010 W-3-5%-F-A 702 4,885 7849 77 20 6,353 3620 24,356
Exchange differences B 1,886 874 8 13 7 6 126 2920
Charge for he year KEEHE 4318 4,468 450 191 40 632 1804 11,903
Disposals ik - - - - (63 - 6] @)
Imparment loss HEEE 60,144 27,953 - 163 2 147 1472 98,900
Disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEMBAA
(Note 291} (FiEE20000) - - = (1) = (1) (43 [243%)
At31stDecember 2010 R-5-3£
t=A=1-A 76,050 3,180 8307 1113 205 7197 4,580 135,572
Net book value BESE
At31stDecember 2010 RZZ-EF
+=A=1-A 352 2,785 1473 8 13 604 1,356 10,109
At 31st December 2010, buildings with carrying R-ZE—ZTF+_A=+—H,RAEDHA
values of approximately HK$3,520,000 had been 3,520,000 T 2 EFEERITRLE (M zE25) M
pledged for borrowings (Note 25). F LA o

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEZEEERLE



15. Property, plant and equipment

(cont’d)

Company

Cost
At 1st January 2011
Additions

At 31st December 2011
Accumulated depreciation
At 1st January 2011

Charge for the year

At 31st December 2011

Net book value
At 31st December 2011

Cost
At 1st January 2010
Additions

At 31st December 2010
Accumulated depreciation
At 1st January 2010

Charge for the year

At 31st December 2010

Net book value
At 31st December 2010

Notes to the Financial Statements
MR =M E

R-ZE——%F+-"F=+—8H
REAE
R—E——F—H—H
REFHE
R-ZE——%F+-F=+—H

IRERE
n_F——F+-A=t—H

RAIE
K-2-2F—A—A
RERHE

R=F-FF+-A=t+-A

IEERE
R_Z—ZF+-_A=+—H

15. % - BB Raxim (i)

PO /NE|
Office furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and
improvements fittings Total
HEWE BAERM
®E RER®E #am
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TER TET
208 21 229
- 20 20
208 41 249
5 - 5
59 8 67
64 8 72
144 33 177
208 21 229
208 21 229
5 - 5]
S - ®
203 21 224

—ZT——FF3% Annual Report 2011
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MRS

16. Land use rights

The Group’s interests in land use rights represent
prepaid operating lease payment and their net

book values are analysed as follows:

In Mainland China, held on:
Leases of between 10 to 50 years

At 1st January

Exchange differences

Impairment loss

Amortisation

Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 29(bj(ii))

At 31st December

At 31st December 2010, land use rights with
carrying values of approximately HK$26,896,000
had been pledged for borrowings (Note 25).

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&EHERAR

16. T ih{EAE

RERERN i RS RN K LR ETUR

LEREFESTAT ¢

2011 2010
—E—f —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fi#T T

R A - AT ARER
NFA0ES50FHHEE - 28,462
2011 2010
—E—ff —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FA&TT
r—H—H 28,462 30,535
M H 2= %A 439 1,056
BEE 8 - (2,471)
B (207) (658)
HEMB AT (5 29(0)(i) (28,694) =
R+=—A=+—H - 28,462

NZE-—ZTF+_A=+—B,EEEANAE
26,896,000/8 T 2 L i(F A#EE EIRITAELE (FF
5E25) 1 T AR o



17.

Investments in subsidiaries

Unlisted investments, at cost

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Amounts due from subsidiaries
LLess: Provision for impairment

Notes to the Financial Statements

FEEMHRE (RAA)

JE WK Bt B8 /2 R IR

B R

As at 31st December 2010 and 2011, amounts
due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-

free and repayable on demand. As at 31st

December 2011, amounts due from subsidiaries
of HK$2,624,000 (2010: HK$138,568,000)
was denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
HK$12,916,000 (2010: nil) was denominated in
RMB. The carrying values of amounts due from

subsidiaries approximate their fair values.

M RERME

REATRRE
Company

b /N
2011 2010
=% —T—TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFET FAET
89,205 88,482

PE U Bt IS A Rl R IE
Company

b /NG|
2011 2010
=% —F-—FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FAT
15,540 138,568
- (110,089)
15,540 28,479
MNZZE—ZFFER-_FT——F+-_HA=+—H &
KRB AR 2 HRIBRERR - 28 ELZ, REK
REE RZE——FTA=1T—80"EK

M AR FIEF 2624000?%7&(_7 T
138,568,000 % 7T) LA TTETHE + 12,916,000 4 7T
(ZZ—ZF - &) UARKEEE - BRIBAF
ZFIEREERKREA L BERSE

—ZT——FF3% Annual Report 2011
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17. Investments in subsidiaries (cont’d)

17. RFBL2FRE ()

120

Amounts due from subsidiaries (cont’d)

As at 31st December 2010, amounts due from
subsidiaries of HK$110,089,000 were impaired
and provided for. The balance represented
fund transfer to the subsidiary in prior years.
Due to the uncertainty in recovering the
balance, impairment loss for amount due from
the subsidiary was recognised based on the
difference between the carrying amount and the
estimated discounted net cash flows from the
subsidiary.

Amounts due to subsidiaries

As at 31st December 2010 and 2011, the
amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

The carrying values of amounts due to
subsidiaries approximate their fair values.

Details of principal subsidiaries, which in the
Directors’ opinion, materially affect the results
and/or net assets of the Group as at 31st
December 2011 are set out in Note 35.

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&EHERAR

FE U FfY B X B =K E (4]

R-ZZ—ZTHF+-A=+—0 BUHBARZ
5XT8110,089,000/8 L EVERVE R4 - AR E
AT FEEIRENB AR - ARZSE BT
FEREE M - BRI E A B3R IE 2 R EE R
TR EEREE RN B A R 2 KRR GHEFRR S
REFEZEZEMET

B D BRIE
R_E—ZEFR_F——F+-_A=+—H" &
~H B A PR IE A ERT - 28 BN EREEE

ENMBARREZREERRERAEEN
=

EERAUAEBZEER, /N T —F
T A=+ HZFEEBKEATE T EK
B AR 2 FBEHRMIRESS o
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18. Financial instruments by category 18. BRERESMEMTIA
Group REH
2011 2010
—E—45 —ET-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FAT
Loans and receivables B RIEN
Assets as per consolidated REEEABRMNEE
balance sheet
Trade and other receivables B 5 &k E Ath e GRIE 96,431 108,404
Pledged bank deposits (Note 21) EHRIRITI R (FFEE21) 70,450 92,789
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEFEY (KizE22)
(Note 22) 54,869 62,230
Total #aza 221,750 263,423
2011 2010
—E2——%F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FABT
Other financial liabilities BB E E
Liabilities as per consolidated EEEAEBERMTARE
balance sheet
Trade and other payables B 5 R HAEFIE 30,693 131,665
Amount due to a related e —REE A RFIA
company (Note 31) (fF3ES1) 876 876
Amount due to a non-controlling FEAS — Az FEFZE ) 1 AR R SR IE
shareholder - 17
Borrowings (Note 25) B8 (fizE25) 69,925 174,042
Total “aza 101,494 306,600

—ZT——FF3% Annual Report 2011
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18. Financial instruments by category

18. BRERNSHEMI A (I|)

122

(cont’d)
Company ARAFE
2011 2010
—2——F —T-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#T FHBT
Loans and receivables B R BN
Assets as per balance sheet BEABRITAE
Deposits and other receivables e R E A ERGRIE 5 117
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE L B 8 A A A (Bt RE17)
(Note 17) 15,540 08,479
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 22) BeMReEEY (MizE22) 245 680
Total ke 15,790 29,276
2011 2010
—E—% —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#T FHBT
Other financial liabilities HBE E
Liabilities as per balance sheet EEBERITAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEASB B 2 m)Fk A (B EE17)
(Note 17) 90,253 99,978

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEZEEERLE




19.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Inventories

Raw materials =R
Work in progress e m
Consumables SFm
Merchandises EER

At 31st December 2011, the provision
for impairment of inventories amounted
to approximately HK$22,263,000 (2010:
HK$25,356,000).

The cost of inventories recognised as expenses
and included in cost of sales amounted to
HK$325,931,000 (2010: HK$288,718,000).

At 31st December 2010, inventories held
by a PRC subsidiary with carrying values of
approximately HK$80,930,000 were pledged for
borrowings (Note 25).

M RERME

19. &8

2011 | 2010
=% —R-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

- 17,902

- 6,828

- 1,941

160,825 203,874
160,825 230,545

R-Z——F+-A=+—8 GFEREEED
# 22,263,00078 70 ( —Z —ZF : 25,356,00075
JL) °

ERBHWIIAHERARE T 217 ERAZE
326,931,000/ 7L (= F —Z 4 : 288,718,00078
JT) °

RZE-—ZF+-_A=+—B KEAEHR

80,930,000 B T2 FERFE 2B RBFA -
BRRITREE (M 5E25) M F AR -

—ZT——FF3% Annual Report 2011
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MRS

20. Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables
Less: provision for
impairment

Trade receivables-net

Prepayments

Other receivables
and assets, net

Rental deposits and
other assets

Less: non-current portion

B 2RI
B R

B 2R FIR —

SEANEN

H At WK IR B
BEFE

Bume Rk
HibEE

B FEREN AR

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, other

receivables, other assets and rental deposits

approximate their fair values.

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&EHERAR

20. BH5EHEERRIER

Group Company
*EE b /N

2011 2010 2011 2010
—g——% | “T-TH | ZB——%F | _T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FET FET T
92,360 100,279 - -
(1,557) (3,190) - -
90,803 97,089 - -
35,020 61,238 251 1,211
775 7,922 5 117
4,853 3,393 - —
131,451 169,642 256 1,328
(4,853) (3,196) - -
126,598 166,446 256 1,328

B SRR - EtRUKGRIE - BB E MELY
BeRESBRENFAAEBERS
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20. Trade and other receivables (cont’d)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade

and other receivables are denominated in the

following currencies:

Hong Kong dollars

RMB
uSD
MOP
EURO
AUD

BT
AR¥E

HRFTHS
BT
BIT

The Group generally granted credit term of 60-

120 days under the segment of trading of pipes
and fittings. The ageing analysis of the trade
receivables, based on the due date is as follows:

Within credit period

1 to 30 days
31 to 60 days
61 to 90 days
91 to 120 days
Over 120 days

EEHA
1REI0XR
31 REB0K
61 RE0K
91 RE120K
B 120K

20. BHRHEMEWRIEA (&)

AEEE S LEMREFIRZ RESEANIE

#atE -

2011 2010
——% —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FaT FHET
94,262 83,930
13,977 42 474
21,029 41,332
1,939 489

- 1,197

244 220
131,451 169,642

AEE—RETHREREHBESIDEZEENR
B0E 120K » E S EUGKIZEIH A Z Rk H A 20

T

2011 2010
—E——%F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
68,839 60,725
14,219 19,113
5,235 2,570
1,347 1,634
96 535
2,624 15,702
92,360 100,279
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BHRAER RN (1)

20. Trade and other receivables (cont’d) 20.

Trade receivables that are current or past
due less than four months are not considered
impaired. As of 31st December 2011,
trade receivables of HK$21,964,000 (2010:
HK$36,364,000) are past due but not impaired.
These relate to a number of independent
customers for whom there is no recent history
of default. The ageing analysis of these trade
receivables is as follows:

1 to 30 days 1RXE30K
31 to 60 days 31 XZE60X
61 to 90 days 61 RKXZE 90K
91 to 120 days 91 RE120K
Over 120 days BiE 120K

As at 31st December 2011, trade receivables
of HK$1,557,000 (2010: HK$3,190,000) are
impaired and provided for. The individually
impaired receivables mainly relate to customers,
which are in unexpected difficult financial
situations. These receivables are past due more

than 120 days.

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&EHERAR

BVEisk @ A A LA T 2 B B EMHBETE =
EBERE - BEZE_TE——F+=_A=+—H"
Z 5 e IR 5k TE 21,964,00058 T ( — T — T 4F -
36,364,000 7% 7T ) B8 BB RFIE ° 5% 5 58 HE
— MW BB CHR BUREP A 25 E
SEBGRIE Z BRI D AT AT

2011 2010
—2——5 —ET-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T FHBT
14,219 19,113
5,235 2,570
1,347 1,634

96 535

1,067 12,512
21,964 36,364
A—Z——F+_-A=+—0 " BFrEkKZE

1,557,000/87C (=& —ZF : 3,190,000/87T) E
YEREEE - [E7 2 RE RN FIEE Z AR
ANEEREE 2 REAR - 2SR IEA B A
120K o
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20. Trade and other receivables (cont’d)

Movements on the provision for impairment of

trade receivables are as follows:

Kn—HA—H
B R

At 1st January

Provision for impairment

Receivables written off during
the year as uncollectible

Unused amounts reversed REYAFIBE D
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHTB AT
Exchange difference M R

At 31st December Rt+—-—A=+—8

The addition and release of provision for impaired
receivables have been included in general and
administrative expenses in the consolidated
income statement. Amounts charged to the
provision account are generally written off when
there is no expectation of recovering additional
cash.

As at 31st December 2011, no other receivables
were impaired and provided for (2010:
HK$25,045,000).

Save as above, the other classes within trade and
other receivables do not contain impaired assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date is the fair value of each class of
receivables mentioned above. The Group does
not hold any collateral as security.

F T 8 LUK TR R BE K (2] T 5

M RERME

20. BHRHEMEWRIEA (&)

B RBF 2 RERBEEIT

2011 2010
=% —R-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT T
3,190 2,612
531 904
(458) _
(218) (375)
(1,492) _

4 49

1,557 3,190

BTG K AR RR R E R UGRIR 2 BB E T AR S
WaERRNZ —REITHER - REHERRHHIERR
SR —RNFER TS U EIFEINR S -

N_ZT——F+-_A=+—H8  TELMHEIRXK
EERERS (—Z—Z4F : 25,045,00047T) °

Bk Lt ASh - B 5 K E M R IR A A R R I
BEMERESE -

RS Bz RRERERR A LIS BEKKIEA
ZAREE - REBELERSETAEMREE
e
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21.

Pledged bank deposit

As at 31st December 2011, bank deposit
of HK$50,000,000 (2010: HK$75,000,000)
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
bank deposit of HK$20,450,000 (2010:
HK$17,789,000) denominated in RMB were
pledged as collateral for the Group’s banking
facilities (Note 25).

The effective interest rate on pledged bank
deposit was 0.87% (2010: 0.72%) per annum
and these deposits are matured within 4 to 81
days (2010: 12 to 166 days).

22. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank and in hand RITRFHERS
Maximum exposure to R 0} 4

EERR

credit risk

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&EHERAR

21.

EERRITER

RZZF——F+=A=+—H - 50,000,000 T
—ZT— T4 : 75,000,000 7T ) A B TTEHE K&
20,450,000 77T (ZF—Z4 : 17,789,000/ 7T)
AARBTEZRITERE TR - (EAEXSE
EIRITEEREE 2R ([7E25) °

BERFRTFRZBRNERFL0.87%(=F—
TF 072%) - WEFHZEMBEN T 4RZE 81
R(ZZB—FF : 12RE166K) °

22. BleRhBeFR/Y

Group Company
*&EE b /N

2011 2010 2011 2010
—g——% | “T-TH | ZB——%F | “T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FRT FHEIL FRT FAT
54,869 62,230 245 680
54,413 62,060 245 680
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22. Cash and cash equivalents (cont’d)

22. BarBReERY (&)

The carrying amounts of the Group and the AEEEARNRIZRE RSB 2 RE e

Company’s cash and cash equivalents are BT E®ETHE -
denominated in the following currencies:
Group Company
*EH b /N
2011 2010 2011 2010
—®——% | _2-TF | Z8——%F | T -TF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAET TERT FHET
Hong Kong dollars BT 40,767 43,309 245 680
RVB AR 12,353 17,301 - -
usD ET 136 38 - -
AUD BIT 203 203 - -
EURO BT 1 5 - -
Other currencies H g 1,409 1,374 - =
54,869 62,230 245 680

BZEFAARETEZ BRI BRBINERAEZE
BEEHTE  AXDBEBNERINEE IS

The conversion of these RMB denominated
balances into foreign currencies and the

remittance of these funds out of the Mainland MEFRPR ©
China is subject to the exchange control
restrictions imposed by the PRC government.
23. Share capital 23. k¥
Number
of shares
Eine e
thousands HK$’000
T FET
At 1st January and RZE—ZFF—H—-HBEK
31st December 2010 +=—A=+—H 13,332,700 26,665
At 1st January and RZZE—F—A—BK
31st December 2011 +=—A=+—8 13,332,700 26,665
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23. Share capital (cont’d) 23. B&E (i)

130

The authorised share capital of the Company is
HK$500,000,000, comprising 250,000 million
shares (2010: 250,000 million shares) with a par
value of HK$0.002 per share (2010: HK$0.002
per share). All issued shares are fully paid.

Share option scheme

The Company has adopted a share option
scheme (“Scheme”) under which the directors
of the Company are authorised at their absolute
discretion, to invite any eligible participants
as defined in the Scheme, to take up options
to subscribe for shares in the Company. The
subscription price will be determined by the
Board, but shall be at least the highest of (a)
the closing price of shares as stated in the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet on the date on which the relevant options
are deemed to be granted and accepted in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme (“the
Commencement Date”), which must be a day
on which the Hong Kong Stock Exchange is
open for the business of dealing in securities
(“Trading Day”); (b) the average closing price
of the shares as stated in the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for
the five Trading Days immediately preceding
the Commencement Date; and (c) the nominal
value of the shares. A consideration of HK$10
is payable on acceptance of the grant of option.
The maximum number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the Scheme
may not exceed 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of adoption of the
Scheme. The number of shares may be refreshed
by the approval of the shareholders and the
refreshed limit of the number of shares must not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of the approval of the
refreshed limit. The Scheme became effective
for a period of ten years commencing 24th June
2004.

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&EHERAR

AR ) 2 5K TE B AR & 500,000,00058 78 - &R
HE0.002E L (=ZF —ZF : §RMAE0.002
# 7T ) $£250,000,000,0008( — T — & 4 :
250,000,000,000 %) #875X = FTEEEHITRHEE
R -

BT 8
RARERM—RBRERT S ([BAERE)) -
Bt - REARFES2ENBEFIMNEER
28%E (TR ABRETE) ZRA BB AR R
MBERE RABERHEFTSETE  ETSE
R (a) BAn 1R 76 BRRE B 1 A5 A i PR B A i R 21 16k
FEOEEMAE R (FRBrEH]) (AREBHMR
REEFEEXB2BHMIRZAE D) EERRE
B ERRERARWHIE  (b) RIDHRER
Fn A HAREE R AR S A ER SR AR
EBRMAHRFHRHE k() BEhEE=EFZ
RinE c BFARLZSNBERER  ARAZEX
10T 2B - RIEBIRIERT SR L 2 BAE
BRZBHESHE  TSBEERABRETE
ERARRADEITRAZ10% ° B8 E A Bk
REEEFH - EEHZBOEE LRTGEBB
HEEH R Z BRARREHITRAZ10% °
B EH _TTMOFEANA - TEOHRHTF
NBR -
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23. Share capital (cont’d)

Share option scheme (cont’d)

U)

On 3rd December 2009, 592,000,000
share options were offered to and accepted
by Directors and employees, with an
exercise price of HK$0.071 and an option
period of 10 years commencing from
3rd December 2009 and expiring on 2nd
December 2019 (both days inclusive). The
options granted to the grantees are vested
in stages and be exercised in the following
manner:

Maximum percentage of the Options exercisable

iz RRERRE AL

20%
20%
20%
20%
20%

On 5th May 2010, 16,000,000 share
options were offered to and accepted by
Director and employee, with an exercise
price of HK$0.083 and an option period
of 10 years commencing from 5th May
2010 and expiring on 4th May 2020 (both
days inclusive). The options granted to
the grantees are vested in stages and be
exercised in the following manner:

Maximum percentage of the Options exercisable

AiTEZREERRES L

20%
20%
20%
20%
20%

MR RME

23. Br*&(48)

Eﬁﬂﬁ%‘l‘;](%a)

U)

RZZZENF+ZA=H AEERES
NAE B Z 4930 B &£ 49 592,000,000 {7 & AR
- ZEBRECITEER0.07T1 BT RE
RERRATF AT NF+-A=

ARBE_FT—NF+_A-_HHH(2HE
HEMA) - BTERANERERDREE

B, WA T A AT(E

Period for exercise of the relevant percentage of the options

fTEARMREE S Lz RR

3/6/2010 - 2/12/2019
3/6/2011 -2/12/2019
3/6/2012 - 2/12/2019
3/6/2013 - 2/12/2019
3/6/2014 - 2/12/2019

(i)

R-Z—ZFRAARAB AEEREER
1B B Z 43 B & # 4916,000,000 17 f# A%
1 S EEARE 2 1TE(E R 0.083 B T K E
RERRATHF B —ZTFHHARA

MuzE 2 TFAANBIH(REER
MA) - T ARANBREG D EREE,

WA T AT -

Period for exercise of the relevant percentage of the options

TRERMREE 2 Lz MR

5/11/2010 - 4/5/2020
5/11/2011 - 4/5/2020
5/11/2012 - 4/5/2020
5/11/2013 - 4/5/2020
5/11/2014 - 4/5/2020
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23. Share capital (cont’d)

Share option scheme (cont’d)

(i)

On 8th June 2011, 10,000,000 share
options were offered to and accepted
by a Director, with an exercise price of
HK$0.0392 and an option period of 10
years commencing from 8th June 2011
(both
The options granted to

and expiring on 7th June 2021
days inclusive).
the grantees are vested in stages and be
exercised in the following manner:

Maximum percentage of the Options exercisable
AfHECBRERRESLL

20%
20%
20%
20%
20%

Vesting of options granted to certain employees

is subject to achievement of profit target.

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&EHERAR

23. Bx& (48)

BBRRERT 8 (&)

(i)

RZZ——FRANB AEER—(E
F B4 B &5 49 10,000,000 17 & A% %
ZEBIE 2 TEEH0.0892 78 T & B
EHRATF AT ——FA/\BHA
WE_ZE_—FSAtBEH(BEERER
H) - BTPEFANBRIESSEERFB, I
AT AR

Period for exercise of the relevant percentage of the options
TERRBRES 2 LR

8/12/2011 - 7/6/2021
8/12/2012 - 7/6/2021
8/12/2013 - 7/6/2021
8/12/2014 - 7/6/2021
8/12/2015 - 7/6/2021

BRYETREZBIREREDH

@A B 1277 Al 5 8

THBRESR -
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23. Share capital (cont’d) 23. & (i)
Share option scheme (cont’d) IBIRRESTEI(])
Movements in the number of share options FR - HWATTERIESE 2 EFHaT ¢

outstanding during the year are as follows:

At 1st January 2010

R=—E—2=F—H—H

Average
exercise
price in HK$
per share options
=130 e
FEIHITHER
(#T) ISR iER E

Number of

0.071 592,000,000

Granted and accepted [SESSRRIZe3 0N 0.083 16,000,000
Lapsed B 0.071 (36,400,000)
At 31st December 2010 and RZE—ZTF+=A=+—H

1st January 2011 KZFT—F—H—H 0.071 571,600,000
Granted and accepted SRR 0.0392 10,000,000
Lapsed B 0.071 (210,600,000)

At 31st December 2011

Out of 371,000,000 (2010: 571,600,000)
outstanding share options, 112,000,000 (2010:
77,600,000) share options were exercisable as at

31st December 2011.

R_F—%+_H=+—H

1T

0.071 371,000,000

R—ZZE——F+=-A=+—8 - 371,000,000
(= & — & £ :571,600,000) ¥ P& # +,
112,000,000 % (== —Z 4 : 77,600,000) £ A]
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24. Reserves

Group

At 1st January 2010

Loss for the year

Currency translation
diferences

Disposal of subsidaries
(Note 29(o)()

Share based payment

At 31st December 2010
and 1st January 2011

Profitfor the year
Currency translation
differences
Disposal of subsidiaries
(Note 29(b)))
Share hased payment
Transfer to statutory
fesene
Transfer upon lapse
0f share options

At 31st December 2011

R-2-F5-A-H
ERER
SHAGEE

HEWBAF
(HzE290)00)
Wik EER

RZF-%
t-R=+-BR
“2—F-f-H

EEa

]

28

HENBAR
(HzE29(00s ()

WRH BRI

E VY

REREXIER

RZF——F
+=h=1-H

Notes to the Financial Statements
B F iR =M E

24. %@
REE
Capital Merger Share based
Share reserve reserve Statutory Exchange payment Retained
premium (note(i) (noteii) reserve reserve reserve eamings Total
LY | i HRhE
RiraR (£ () (M (i) R ERGE  AROMR REAH ]
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK§000
T ThTL TR T ThT ThL ThL T
126,618 34,115 3,700 - 16913 8 206,321 388,385
- - - - - - (276 (122769
- - - - 4510 - - 4510
- - - - (15,488 - - (15,488
- - - - - 5,104 - 5,104
126,618 34,115 3,100 - 5,935 5822 83,552 259,742
- - - - - - 13,280 13,280
- - - - 754 - - 754
- - - - (“m) - - (47m
- - - - - 1,789 - 1,789
- - - 2% - - (24) -
- - - - - (957) 957 -
126,618 34,115 3,700 % 1916 6,654 97,765 210,792

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&EHERAR
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24. Reserves (cont’d)

24

M RERME

. fEfm (1)

Company

At 1st January 2010
Loss for the year
Share based payment

At 31st December 2010
and 1st January 2011

Loss for the year
Share based payment

Transfer upon lapse of
share options

At 31st December 2011

Notes:

ENNS

Contributed Share based

Share surplus payment Accumulated
premium (note(iii)) reserve deficit Total
BARER GLorc
RivaE (M) ERHER RetEHR o1
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THAT AT THT TAT THET
WZE—FF—HA—H 126,618 86,759 718 (52,112) 161,983
FEER - - - (182,685) (182,685)
PARRID AERER A - - 5,104 - 5,104
RZE—ZF
+-B=+—Ak
—T—%—f—H 126,618 86,759 5,822 (234,797) (15,598)
FEER - - - (4,418) (4,418)
PRI AERER A - - 1,789 - 1,789
BRI K R
- - (957) 931 (26)
AZE——F
+-A=+—H 126,618 86,759 6,654 (238,284) (18,253)
s -

(i)

The capital reserve of the Group arose from
acquisition of the remaining interests in a
subsidiary in 1999. The balance represents
the excess of the fair value attributable to the
net assets and liabilities acquired over the
consideration paid.

The merger reserve of the Group arising from
the group reorganisation is determined by the
difference between the nominal value of shares of
the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group
reorganisation and the nominal value of the
Company’s shares deemed to have been issued.

REB 2 ERFERFRR —NANFWRE RN
BARZER T HER - BRABBRIEMBARFEER
BEZARBEBEEXNREZZRE -

rEEREEEAEMEL 2 AR - THRIRE
SESABAZMBRARRNEELEGIEEET
ZARRBIRNEERERZ ZRETE -
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24. Reserves (cont’d)

25.

Notes: (cont’d)

(i)

The contributed surplus of the Company
represents the difference between the nominal
value of the shares issued by the Company in
exchange for all the issued ordinary shares of
World Trade Bun Kee (BVI) Ltd. and the value
of net assets of the underlying subsidiaries
acquired by the Company in 2000. Under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus is distributable to the
shareholders, subject to a solvency test. At
the Group level, the contributed surplus is
reclassified into its component of reserves of the
underlying subsidiaries.

(iv) At 31st December 2010 and 2011, there is no
distributable profit for the Company.

Borrowings

Current Pk

Short term bank borrowings (note (i)
Trust receipt loans (note (i)

24, %%
M3t

(i)

()

25, &5

EESRTTIEE (MIEE()
SRR &R (MEE ()

Representing: Hrh:
Unsecured SR
Secured (note (v)) B (IR ()

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&EHERAR

(#8)
(&

KRB ZHEAEGTIEANR A BB World
Trade Bun Kee (BVI) Ltd. &30 5 317 & @Ak M 2
TZRHEEEEAQBMKESRENBARN =
TETFEEEFEMERZEZR - BEBRE
—NN\—FREE(EER]) - BARKREFEE
BENEEEH IR ZBRT Sk T
R EAKEZEE F BARBETOELEE
RAMT B A B 2 A ©

R-B-—PER-F——F+-A=+-B &
RAEAHAITRT -

/

i}

2011 | 2010
=% —R-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T FBT

- 106,731

69,925 67,311

69,925 174,042

2,989 1,511

66,936 172,531

69,925 174,042
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25. Borrowings (cont’d)

Notes:

(i) The carrying amounts of the short term bank
borrowings and trust receipt loans approximate
their fair values. As at 31st December 2011,
trust receipt loans of HK$66,936,000 (2010:
HK$65,800,000) are secured. As at 31st
December 2010, short term bank borrowings of

(i)

(i)

(V)

HK$106,731,000 were secured.

The bank borrowings and trust receipt loans are
denominated in the following currencies:

Borrowings: BE :
Hong Kong dollars BT
RMB AR

The effective interest rates (per annum) at the
balance sheet date are as follows:

Short term bank borrowings RHRITIEE
Trust receipt loans ErERER

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to
interest rate changes and the contractual
repricing dates at the balance sheet date are as
follows:

NERZAT

Six months or less

M RERME

25, S8 (i\E)

i

(i)

(iv)

RHSRITIEE RERRIEER 2 RE SR RKE
RABERE RZT——F+-A=+—8"
66,936,000 7T (= ZF—2Z4F : 65,800,000 7T)
ZIERRBEERREEM - R —FTF+_A
=+—H 106,731,000 7T 2 & PRITER S
B o

RITEEREFRBEEFATIEBIINE -

2011 2010

—g——% —T-TF

HK$°000 HK$'000

TET FHET

69,925 67,311

- 106,731

69,925 174,042
REEBRBEXRR  BEZBRENERNT :

2011 2010

25 —E-TF

% %

- 6.49

1.70 1.67

REEABRE  AKHEE
BREFHEEARBRAT :

2011 2010
—2——= —=—%%
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR FBT

- 106,731

—ZT——FF3% Annual Report 2011
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25. Borrowings (cont’d)

Notes: (cont’d)

v)

The banking facilities are secured by corporate
guarantees and certain assets held by
subsidiaries. As at 31st December 2011, bank
deposits of approximately HK$70,450,000
(2010: HK$92,789,000) (Note 21) are secured.
As at 31st December 2010, property, plant and
equipment of approximately HK$3,520,000
(Note 15), land use rights of approximately
HK$26,896,000 (Note 16) and inventories of
approximately HK$80,930,000 (Note 19) were
secured.

26. Deferred taxation

Deferred tax assets to be

25, S&(i|)

BieE : (A&

v)

BTREREHARNERENBARBEZEE
B - R=F—F+_A=+—8 - 877
F#)70,450,00058 7T ( —E—Z4 : 92,789,000
L) (MiEE21) BEfERIF - RZZE—TF+ = A
=1+—HB % BE&KZE 3,520,000/ T
(B5E15) ~ L HbfsE FA#EH 26,896,000 7% 7t (FisE
16) M1F & #780,930,000 8 7T (Pt 5E 19) VEHK AR -

26. EERIA

R+ EA& B

recovered after 12 months RETRIBE =
Deferred tax liabilities to be BRATEARERZ
settled after 12 months EEHIBEE

Deferred tax is calculated in full on temporary

differences under the liability method using tax

rates of the relevant subsidiaries applicable to the

period when the asset is expected to be realised

or the liability to be settled, based on tax rates

that have been substantively enacted by the

balance sheet date.

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&EHERAR

2011 2010
—E—5 —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T FHBT
97 4,578

- (4,541)

97 37

BEERERAEBEEINABENBAREREESR
AR BBEEEcHEMERAZRER(RNEERAR
= AR ELRM) (FRBURME -
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26. Deferred taxation (cont’d)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to
income tax levied by the same taxation authority
on either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.

The net movement on the deferred tax account is
as follows:

26.

At 1st January Rn—H—H
Credited to income statement W ERBRET A
— Continuing operation —FHEEEE
(Note 10) (Mg3E10)
— Discontinued operations — R BT
Exchange differences M R
At 31st December W+=—A=+—8

M RERME

EFERIA ()

BEATERMNIBASMTIREEENRRARE
HiH - METHREEREERARBESRF—
MY - —KERR AL TR RS
RABERBRBENFESE - A EEHRRE
EEIREN B EE AR

BERIARRE 2 #BFRAT

2011 | 2010
=% —R-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

37 (6,975)

60 (2,258)

- 9,373

- (103)

97 37
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MRS

26. Deferred taxation (cont’d)

The movements in deferred tax assets and

liabilities during the year,

without taking into

consideration the offsetting of balances within the
same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

Deferred tax assets

At 1st January 2010
(Charged)/credited to
income statement

- Continuing operation
— Discontinued operations

Exchange differences

At 31st December 2010
and 1st January 2011

(Charged)/credited to
income statement

— Continuing operation
- Discontinued operations

Exchange differences
Disposal of subsidiaries
(Note 29(b)(ii))

At 31st December 2011

S e
TR (),/FHA

—RHEEEER
— IR BT
MENZ5E

RZE—EF
+=-A=+— H&
—ET——F—

TElzs sk (F0k )/ aJrA

[1] NH

—RHELEER

—RIEEBER
BE 5 =%
HEHNBAR

(PF5E 29(b)i)
RZT——45
+ZA=t—A

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&EHERAR

26. EFEIA ()

ELERRAEERBBENFARZEE CREH RNE

R ERAEEZ AR 2T

ELEHEEE
Decelerated tax

Tax losses depreciation Total
RIEE WEREIE @
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT TAT
11,833 - 11,833
(2,366) 37 (2,329
(9,577) 4,429 (5,148)

110 112 222

- 4,578 4,578

- 60 60

- (52) (52)

- 70 70

- (4,559) (4,559)

- 97 97
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26. Deferred taxation (cont’d)

26. EFEIA ()

Deferred tax liabilities BB IESE
Accelerated tax Revaluation
depreciation on assets Total
MERERE EffEE i
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FAET TAET FHET
At 1st January 2010 R-ZE—ZTF—f—H (70) (18,738) (18,808)
Credited/(charged) to ek
income statement A (k%)
- Continuing operation —REREER 71 = 71
— Discontinued operations — R B ) 14,522 14,521
Exchange differences bE = - (325) (325)
At 31st December 2010 RZZE—FF
and 1st January 2011 +-A=t—H8k
—E—%—H—H - (4,541) (4,541)
Credited/(charged) to R A (30%)
income statement
— Discontinued operations —RRIEEBER - 52 52
Exchange differences MEH ZE - (70) (70)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHB AR
(Note 29(b)(ii) (BT =E29(0)(i)) - 4,559 4,559
At 31st December 2011 RZZE——4
+=-A=+—8 - - -

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for
tax losses carried forward to the extent that the
realisation of the related tax benefit through the
future taxable profits is probable. The Group
did not recognise deferred income tax assets
of HK$7,165,000 (2010: HK$24,090,000) in
respect of accumulated tax losses amounting
to HK$41,426,000 as at 31st December 2011
(2010: HK$110,509,000), that can be carried
forward against future taxable income. As at
31st December 2011, the accumulated tax
losses amounting to HK$3,881,000 (2010:
HK$68,900,000) will be expired in five years.
There is no expiry period for the other tax losses.

BIEFRSIRIBE A E DR EMRBAREMN = AT SRR
2R E SR B B3R I BE AT 4588 < TR IB B R {E I 1
Re AEBUAR T ——F+=A=1+—H
Al &S A SR R ER T A 2 2T HIIEE B
41,426,000 7T ( = Z —Z 4 : 110,509,000 %
TL) ERIRIE TS THIEE E 7,165,000 L (=&
—Z 4 : 24,090,00087T) c RZE——F+=
RA=+—R  Z% 2 BIEEEZES3,881,000/%8
T (ZZ—Z4 : 68,900,000/87T) * BRAFNA
EIER o H AR A SN A E M EAR -
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MRS

27. Trade and other payables

Trade payables B ST FIE
Accrued expenses and TEIREBR K
other payables E A e

The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade
payables is as follows:

Within 30 days 30 KA
31 to 60 days 31 RZE60X
61 to 90 days 61 KE 90K
Over 90 days EBIE 90K

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&EHERAR

27. BHRHEMMEMNREA

Group Company
*EE b /N
2011 2010 2011 2010
——8 | =T | ZB—F | _TTF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FET FET T
16,672 87,425 - =
38,053 55,412 6,758 8,148
54,725 142,837 6,758 8,148
REEE FHEMNFIBRRERDTAT ¢
2011 2010
—E2——5 —T-TF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
TFET T
13,262 21,943
1,904 5,449
433 692
1,073 59,341
16,672 87,425




27. Trade and other payables (cont’d) 27.

28.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and

other payables are denominated in the following

currencies:

Hong Kong dollars BIT
usD ET
RMB AREE
EURO BATT
Other currencies Hih 5
Operating lease commitment 28.
Land and buildings T RAEF
Not later than one year NiBiE—F

Later than one year and
not later than five years
Later than five years

Equipment and motor vehicles
Not later than one year
Later than one year and

not later than five years

BB —FETBG
REFE
BERF

B R AE
BB —F
iR —F (TR
AEF

The lease terms are between one to ten years,
and the majority of lease agreements are
renewable at the end of the lease period at

market rate.

M RERME

5 5 B H At FE AR IR (#8)

AREB 2B 5 MEAMENFKAZERASEIZAT

EERNKIE

2011 2010
——% —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT FHBT
43,732 29,267
7,462 33,855
1,950 751858
312 3,695
1,269 667
54,725 142,837
Group
T5E
2011 2010
—E—5 —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FHET
16,604 15,375
60,172 18,834
9,784 145
86,560 34,354
752 378
1,260 1,251
2,012 1,629
88,572 35,983

HERNF—=2+F TENHESESNNEES
BRI ERL
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29. Notes to the consolidated statement

of cash flows

(@) Reconciliation of profit/(loss) before (@)

income tax to net cash generated

from/(used in) operations

Profit/(loss) before income
tax from continuing operation
Loss before income tax from
discontinued operations
— Seamless steel pipes
- Investment properties

Adjustments for:

Depreciation
Amortisation
Loss on disposal of property,

plant and equipment, net (note)
Fair value loss on investment properties
Interest income
Interest expenses
Write-back of trade payable
Provision for customer claim
Provision for impairment

of trade and other receivables
Write-back of provision

for impairment of inventories
Impairment loss on property,

plant and equipments
Impairment loss on land use rights
Impairment loss on goodwill
Share based payments
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Changes in working capital:

Increase in inventories
Increase in trade and other receivables
Increase in trade and other payables
Decrease in amounts due

to a non-controlling shareholder

Net cash generated
from/(used in) operations

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&EHERAR

20, FEHeRERME

BADRR (B8 BEEEREE (A
) 2B & FEEHE
2011 2010
22— —T-%F
HK$000 HK$'000
THT FAT
FEEEBRB T
w@fl/ (B8) 15,664 (13,231)
RIEEBRB 2 BRI
BB
—fEEME {1,717 (144,635)
—REME - (27,731)
13,947 (185,597)
SETFIER R -
e 1,983 11,903
g 207 658
HENE - BER
FtE 2 B1EEE () 110 10
BEMEZ DR EBEBE - 23,110
FERA (601) (307)
FEZ M 4,264 17,937
B ST A (6,912 =
RPRERE 3,694 =
B 5 REM BN E
B 710 5,386
FEREER
(3,093) (4,736)
W% - BERREREESE
- 98,900
T AR EEE - 2,471
HERESSE - 23,050
AR BEREAR 1,789 5,104
HEMBA RN (832) =
EBESEE
FEEM (11,355) (42,435)
B 5 A YL AN (23,778) (7,434)
B 5 KA fERFCE 33,450 49,515
FER— R IEE I M AR R SRR R
(17) (118)
REEBELE /(A ALTE 13,566 (2,083)
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29. Notes to the consolidated statement
of cash flows (cont’d)

(a)

Reconciliation of profit/(loss) before
income tax to net cash generated
from/(used in) operations (cont’d)

Note: Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
and equipment comprises:

Net book amount BREFAE
Loss on disposal L& EE
Proceeds from disposal & FTS 30E
Represented by: (ES

Cash &

Other receivable oA pE K

20. RERKNERMEEE)

BiADGR (B8R EREXgEE (f
) 2B FREER(E)

BfeE - WEME - BERREBZMEHIARE

2011 2010
—Z2——5 —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T FHBT
225 88
(110) (10)

115 343

115 22

- 321

115 343
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29. Notes to the consolidated statement 29.

of cash flows (cont’d)

(b)

Disposal of subsidiaries

(i) Details of disposal of subsidiaries

relating to continuing operation are as

follows:

Net assets disposed of
Trade and other receivables
Inventories
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other payables

Net liabilities
Exchange reserves released
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Satisfied by:
Cash received

Analysis of net cash outflow in

respect of disposal of subsidiaries:

Cash received
Cash and cash equivalents
disposed of

Net cash outflow in respect
of disposal of subsidiaries

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEZEEERLE

ReR&RERMEE)

(b) HEKHEAF

) FEFELEXBZLENBRRF

2010
—
HK$'000
TR

BHIET
2011
—E——f
HK$'000
TiET
BHEFEE
B 5 R EMERIE 193
HE 52
HeRREEEY 2,072
25 REMENTIR (2417)
FafE (100)
Bz ERRE (732)
HENBAAKE 832
SGREE
BlES -
BRHEHBRRZ
BEREFENN -
BlES -
BHEZRERELEEY
2,072
ERLERBRRIZBERHFE
2,072




29. Notes to the consolidated statement

of cash flows (cont’d)

Notes to the Financial Statements
MR =M E

(b) Disposal of subsidiaries (cont’d)

(i)

Details of disposal of subsidiaries

relating to discontinued operations

are as follows:

Net assets disposed of
Property, plant and equipment
Land use rights
Investment properties
Deferred tax assets
Trade and other receivables
Inventories
Pledged bank deposits
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other payables
Borrowings
Deferred tax liabilities

Net (liabilities)/assets
Non-controlling interests

Exchange reserves released
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Satisfied by:
Cash received

Analysis of net cash (outflow)/inflow in
respect of disposal of subsidiaries:

Cash received
Cash and cash equivalents
disposed of

Net cash (outflow)/inflow in respect

of disposal of subsidiaries

EHEFEE
VER TS
TitERE
&M=
ERLHEAE
BRRAMRNGE
(3
BMETEN
RERRESEY
A REMENTE
B8
EEHEAR
F#(afE)/4E
FEPERIM

Btz BN G
HEMBARKRE

SGEN
EkEE

FBLENBAR RS

() /RAFEAH -

EkEE
EHEZRER
RasEn

ABHENBARL
Re (i) RAFE

(b)

20. RERKNERMEEE)

HEMB QR ()
(i) FAELELEEXBZHERBRAF
BHIEmT
2011 2010
2% “E-RF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
jfd T#T TEL
15 3,754 1827
16 28,694 -
- 166,623
26 4,559 -
62,016 3
85,627 i
31,312 -
11,348 1,431
(117,476) (4,577)
(108,387) -
2 (4,559) -
(3,112) 165,307
11,846 i
8,734 165,307
(4,041) (15,488)
1,569 12,847
6,262 162,666
6,262 162,666
6,262 162,666
(11,348) (1,431)
(5,086) 161,235
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30. Financial guarantee contract

31.

As at 31st December 2010, a subsidiary of
the Group in Mainland China had provided a
corporate guarantee (with maximum exposure of
approximately HK$21.9 million) in favor of a bank
to support the banking facilities of approximately
HK$43.9 million obtained by an independent
third party which was required to provide 50%
pledged deposit upon drawdown. This guarantee
had been provided as part of counter security
into by the subsidiary
with the independent third party, whereby the

arrangement entered

independent third party had also provided
corporate guarantee in favor of the subsidiary for
banking facilities up to approximately HK$47.4
million. The financial guarantee contract was
not recognised in the consolidated financial
statements as at 31st December 2010 due to its

insignificant value.

Related party transactions

(@) Balances with related parties

30.

MEBRESH

R-E—ZTF+-_A=1+—08  TAEERFTER
HH—RB AR A — B E = H ISR TR
& AR TR it 2 A Al HE R 49 /& 43,900,000 7
TG B HREE R 50% 7 A% JEN 5 = 5 fe
HEARF R (R X &= B 4 A& 21,900,000
BIT) c ZERRBEMBAREBYIE=HE]
3o BEMREROZE  RNEUBYE=H
REBARREARER  UERSRITHERE
#7547,400,0008 7T - HRIIEIERE NNER
FEKX BRER_ZE—ZF+_A=1+—A%K
BB HRE AR ©

31. BEALEZS

() BAEAL#EZE

2011 2010
—g—% —T-T%
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FHIT
Amount due to a related JES —REEE

company (note(i)) A R)ERIE (T EE () 876 876

Amount due to a non-controlling  FEfF—{iz FFF 14
shareholder (notefii)) PRER RIA (P 5 (i) - 17

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&EHERAR




31.

Related party transactions (cont’d)

(a)

(b)

Notes to the Financial Statements

Balances with related parties (cont’d) (@)

Notes:

i) The related company is indirectly owned
by a director. The balance was unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable on
demand.

(ii) Amount due to a non-controlling
shareholder was unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable on demand.

(iii) Interest expenses paid to a related party
for the year ended 31st December 2010
and 2011 are disclosed in Note 9.

Key management compensation (b)

Salaries and other short  #FH& MHMEHES
term employee benefits =l

Pension costs — defined ~ BIRES KA —E58
contribution plans HRETE

Share based payments AR B EERE 2 3R

31. [E

M RERME

AR5 (#E)
REE A L A5ER (4E)
MisE
[0} BEAR A UEEHMEREE ER - &
BRI MR B MR ESK(EE -
(i)  FEAT—(IIEE IR R FOE A EIKE &
MR B IR ESk(EE -
iy BEZZEZ—ZEFR=-ZT——F+=A
=t+—HIFE FE—BEEALZFE
SR E -
TEEHE A SR
2011 2010
—Z2——5 —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
17,486 13,628
211 231
1,821 3,914
19,518 17,773
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32.

33.

34.

Ultimate holding company

The Directors of the Company consider
Singapore Zhongxin, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands, as being the ultimate
holding company. Singapore Zhongxin is wholly
and beneficially owned by Mr. Lai Guanglin, a
director of the Company.

Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been
reclassified to conform to the current year’'s
presentation or restated to disclose the
results of the discountinued operations. These
reclassifications have no impact on the Group’s
and the Company’s loss for the year ended
31st December 2010 or the Group’s and the
Company’s total equity as at 31st December
2010.

Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the
Board of Directors on 14th March 2012.

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEZ£EEERLE

32.

33.

34.

RRZRAT

ARRIEERR  EEBERAHSTMAT 2
Singapore Zhongxin A& 422 /2 &) ° Singapore
Zhongxin B ZANA F] 2 T = Lai Guanglinft £ 2 & &
EmiEa o

LB #F

ETHBEFE TUESBRUNEARFEREZE7
TABEBIIARER L EEE - BIINETFTH
AEEBRARABE_Z—ZF+_A=+—H
IFFENBERERN _T—TF+_A=1+—HH
BRERTEZE -

FHMBEE

EEeR T _F-A+HAEHMBEE -



subsidiaries

Name

4

Incorporated and operating
in Hong Kong
EEBR T RATE

Bun Keg (International) Limited

Wi (BFR) BR A

Hamerwind Logistic Company
Limited
KEMRARAT

Established and operating
in the PRC

EFER LR

Bun Kee Building Material
(Guangzhou) Co., Ltd.*
ek (BN BRAR

Established and operating
in Macao
ERPI T R

Bun Kee Building Material and
Equipment (Macao) Co., Ltd.
W AR Rk (RPT) BR A

Notes to the Financial Statements

35. Particulars of the principal

Principal Activities

FERE

Trading of construction materials,
mainly pipes and fittings
in Hong Kong
REBHERENE (FERRE
REH#)2BS

Provision of warehousing and
logistic services in Hong Kong

REBRER T RIRRS

Assembling construction
materials in the PRC

R ERERENH

Trading of construction materials,
mainly pipes and fittings in Macao

REFESRENH (TERRE
k&) 285

# The company is incorporated in the PRC as a
wholly foreign-owned enterprise.

M RERME

35. ¥EMBLATEH

Percentage
[32]:4

Particulars of
issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital
BETRERE
k% /itmEs

Attributable to

the Group
FREEE

Held by
subsidiaries

WEBLRRE

100 ordlinary shares of HK$1 each 100 100
3,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares of HK$1 each
100 RBREE 1 ATz EER
3,000,000 R B R E(E 1 B2
EREERLERN
800 ordinary shares of HK$100 each 100 100

800 R BIREE 100B T 2 TR

HK$9,000,000 100 100

9,000,000/

MOP50,000 100 100

50,000 275

# ZABRRR BRI ZINEBERE °
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Five Year Financial Summary

AFMEGRR

Revenue

Profit/(loss) before
income tax
Income tax (expense)/credit

Profit/(loss) for the year
from continuing operations

Loss for the year from
discontinued operations
Seamless steel pipes
Investment properties

Loss for the year from
discontinued operations

Profit/(loss) for the year

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Assets and liabilities BERAR

Total assets BEE

Total liabilities Baf

Total equity Eikn

Notes:

1. The results of operation of investment properties

segment (which was discontinued in 2010) prior to

L/ON
BargEH,/(ER)

BUA(KH) /B

SHEEEEBCFE
wh/ (BR)

RIEEERH
LEEER
ERHE
REMF

RIFEERH
ZEEBR

FREN/(BR)
fEfh -

ARERERAA
FEEERI MR R

2009 have not been restated or reclassified.

2. The results of manufacturing and sale of seamless steel
pipes segment (which was discontinued in 2011) prior

to 2010 have not been restated or reclassified.

China Pipe Group Limited HEIEX£&EHERAR

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
—TTAFE _TT\§ _FTENF _T-ITF | 28§
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHT FHT FHL FHL T#T
633,668 701,766 452,018 385,145 438,395
84,583 (36,868) (25,272) (13,231) 15,664
(17,479) (5,728) 2,221 (3,434) (2,791)
67,104 (42596)  (23,051)  (16,665) 12,873
= = = (135,563) (148)

- - (16,346)  (14,855) -

- - (16,346) (150,418 (148)
67,104 (42,596) (39,397) (167,083) 12,725
67,104 (42596)  (39,662)  (122,769) 13,280
- - 265 (44,314) (555)
67,104 (42,596)  (39,397)  (167,089) 12,725
817,492 820,834 924,788 598,355 422,988
(369,883) (416,210) (476,645) (323,062) | (125,531)
447,609 404,624 448,143 275293 | 297,457

1. RENEEE

paNvi

)R

NEARIEEREETIHED R »

PR =F—FENEILEE) R =T

2. HENHEEENELEIM(R T ——FAKLE
BN -Z-ZFUNNEERERIIHEDE -
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